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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members of ESL Steel Limited (Formerly Electrosteel Steels Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of ESL Steel Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of Profit and Loss(including other Comprehensive
Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes for the year ended
on that date (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the

Company as at March 31, 2023, and it’s loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ('SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note no. 44 of the financial Statement which indicates that matters relating to Consent to
Operate (CTO) and Environmental Clearance (EC) pending for approval before Ministry of Environment, Forest
and Climate Change (MoEF). Pending decision on the matter by the MoEF for the reasons stated in the said note,
the financial statements of the company have been prepared on going concern assumption though the
uncertainty on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern exist as on this date. Qur opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters to be
communicated in our report:
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Key Audit Matters

Addressing the key audit matters

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment (P

PE), Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) and Intangible Assets

(as described in note 5.4 and 6.1 of the financial statements
Evaluation of the impairment involves | Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
assessment of value in use of the Cash | conclusion regarding reasonableness of Impairment

Generating Units (CGUs) and requires significant
judgements and assumptions about the forecast
for cash flows, production, volume of
operations, selling prices of the product and
discount rate considered for arriving at the
present value of future cash flows.

The above includes the evaluation of plant and
equipment pertaining to expansion project
undertaken in earlier years and it’s prospects for
implementation in  near future and
implementation in this respect.

Impairment testing of PPE, CWIP and Intangible
assets were carried out during the year ended
March 31, 2018 and provision of Rs. 5,11,193.01
lakhs were made. No further provision or
reversal thereof has been considered necessary
during this year.

includes the following:

Critical evaluation of internal and external factors
impacting the entity’s performance and indicators of
impairment (or reversal thereof) in line with Ind AS
38; .
Analysing the management’s review, contention and
representation regarding the project in progress and
adjustments needed against carrying value of the
assets. This includes, reviewing the feasibility study
of the project by an independent technical
consultant and status of plant and equipment so far
procured currently under progress and being a
technical matter placing reliance on management
contention and technical advice in this respect;
Review of impairment covering the entire block of
tangible and intangible assets and capital work in
progress and valuation models used to determine
the recoverable amount by analysing the key
assumptions used by management in this respect
including:

- Consistency with respect to forecast for arriving

at the valuation and assessing the potential
impact of any variances;

- Price assumptions used in the models; and
- The assumption/estimation for the weighted

average cost of capital and rate of discount for

arriving at the value in use.
Review of projections without taking capacity
expansion and projected outcome thereagainst and
impact thereof on overall impairment assessment.
Placing reliance on the management’s assumption
for future prospects, expansion of current capacity,
expected volume of business and sustainability of
the cash flows.

‘Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets (as described in note 48 of the financial statements)

Deferred tax assets amounting to Rs.
2,54,892.24 lakhs (attributable to depreciation
and losses carry forwards) have been carried
forward in the financial statements as at March
31, 2023.

The above does not include Deferred Tax to the
extent of Rs. 22,503.78 lakhs being not
recognised against carried forward losses on
prudent basis as a matter of abundant caution.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of recognition of
Deferred Tax includes the following:

Utilisation of Deferred tax assets have been tested
considering the period of expiry with respect to
carried forward business loss based on internal
forecasts prepared by the Company and probability
of future taxable income;

We critically examined the temporary differences
between the carrying amounts for Ind AS financial
statement and tax purposes;
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Key Audit Matters

Addressing the key audit matters

Reversal of deferred liability due to timing
differences and possible adjustments of deferred tax
assets there against;

Critical review of the future projections and
underlying assumptions for broad consistency
favouring the principle of prudence for arriving at
reasonable degree of probability on the matters; and
Review of management’s assumption with respect to
earning in future periods and taxability thereof and
placing reliance on such assumptions and projections
given the current and future scale of operations and
prevailing conditions and situations.

Evaluation of Accounting of Iron Ore Mines (as described in note 7.2 of the financial statements)

Recognition of Mining rights and Assets,
stripping activity assets and generation
thereagainst, production profile, stripping ratio,
and proved/ probable reserves, categorization
of Mines as exploratory, development,
producing, liability for decommissioning costs
are based on Technical/ commercial evaluation
by the management.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the

conclusion

regarding reasonableness of disclosure

includes the following:

Review of the Production Profile and related
overburden as submitted by the management to the
authorities;

Examined the valuation process/methodology and
checks being performed to ensure that the valuation
of inventory are as per the policy prescribed in this
respect;

Evaluated the approach adopted by the
management in determining the expected costs of
decommissioning including appropriateness of
discount and inflation rates for estimating such cost
and determining the liability in this respect;

Review of the report submitted by Independent
technical consultants for estimated for of
decommissioning, restoration and other similar
liabilities;

Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements.

Reliance has been placed on the judgments and
estimation of the internal/ external experts for the
purpose of technical /commercial evaluation and
also submission made to authorities in this respect.

Non-Renewal of Consent to Operate from JPSCB

(as described in note 44 of the financial statements)

The Company’'s application for renewal of
Consent to Operate ('CTO’) was denied by
Jharkhand State Pollution Control Board
('JSPCB’). Further Environmental Clearance has
also not been granted by Ministry of
Environment and Forest (MoEF) sighting the
reason for pendency of similar matters for
granting EC lying before certain high courts.
Pursuant a SLP filed on September 25, 2021
before Hon'ble Supreme Court of India against
the said decision of MoEF, Hon'ble Supreme

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of “Going Concern”
include the following:

Obtained the status of the case from the legal
department and their view on the matter;

Evaluated the steps being taken by management for
ensuring the related compliances including those
relating to procurement of land for compensatory
afforestation and/or other costs thereof to be
provided by the company and plans for future course

Page 3 of 14
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Key Audit Matters

Addressing the key audit matters

Court vide order dated December 09, 2021 has
set aside the impugned order and directed
MoEF to process the EC Application of ESL as per
the applicable law within a period of three
months.

MoEF vide its letter dated February 02, 2022 had
deferred the grant of EC till Forest Clearance (FC)
Stage-ll is granted to the company. The
company has so far procured substantial portion
of land and the same have either been handed
over to forest department or is in the advance
stage of doing so for compensatory
afforestation as required for obtaining Stage- II
clearence,

Pending completion of the entire process and
determination of aggregate cost, provision of Rs.
18,951.72 lakhs (net of Rs. 4,600.83 lakhs paid
out of the same) towards cost of land and Rs.
20,556.58 lakhs for other related costs etc. (net
of Rs. 1,473.99 lakhs paid out of the same) for
compensatory afforestation made in earlier
years has been carried in the accounts as on
March 31, 2023.

Pending decision of MaEF on the mater, Hon’ble
Supreme Court has directed that operation of
steel plant shall not be interfered with on the
ground of want of EC, FC, CTE or CTO.

of actions for obtaining Stage Il Clearance as required
for obtaining the enviranment clearance from MoEF;
Reviewed the provision made for cost of land to be
provided to forest department for compensatory
afforestation;

Reviewed the appropriateness of provision made for
afforestation and other costs to be incurred based on
the report received from EIA consultant after
considering the various concerns raised during the
public hearing on the matter and disclosures made in
this respect by the management; '
Reliance has been placed on the estimate and
consultant report for cost of land and other costs to
be incurred for compensatory afforestation against
forest land; and

Further, reliance has also been placed on the legal
expert’s view vis-a-vis direction of Hon'ble Supreme
court of India concerning the operation of the plant
and consultants recommendation and report,
pending final decision on the matter.

Claims in respect of MDPA (as described in note

40(B) of the financial statements)

As at March 31, 2023, the Company has disputed
the demand raised in respect of shortfall in
terms of Mine Development and Production
Agreements (MDPA) entered into with respect
to the Iron Ore Block obligating certain
minimum production and despatch of Iron Ore
for each year of the operations.

Significant management judgement supported
by legal clarification on the matter is required to
assess such matters to determine the
probability of occurrence of outflow of
economic resources and materiality of the
amount involved.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of “Going Concern”
include the following:

Understood, assessed and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of key controls surrounding
assessment of litigations relating to the relevant laws
and regulations;

Inquired with the management for recent
developments and the status of the same as
reviewed and noted by the Audit Committee;
Performed our assessment on a test basis on the
underlying calculations supporting the said claim as
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements;
Evaluated  management's  assessments by
understanding precedents set in similar cases and
assessed the reliability of the management’s past
estimates/judgements;
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Key Audit Matters Addressing the key audit matters

* In case of demand made provisionally review of the
possibilities of meeting the shortfall on aggregate
year to year basis;

¢ Assessed the adequacy of the Company's
disclosures;

* Examined external legal opinions and other evidence
to corroborate management’s assessment of the risk
profile in respect of legal claims; and

e Reliance has been placed on such legal interpretation
and opinion provided on the matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report

thereon. The other information as stated above is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
Auditors’ Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing 50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs (financial position), Loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operatians,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

RPs
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

,
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by Section 143(3)
of the Act, we report that: '

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control with reference to financial statements.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note no. 40(A) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note

no. 46(d) to the financial statements;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

QV_}
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iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures and generally accepted auditing practices followed in terms of SAs
that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement; and

v. The company has not declared any dividend during the year thereby reporting under Section
143(11)(f) is not applicable for the company.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the
Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

With respect to the reporting under section 197(16) of the Act to be included in the Auditors’ Report, In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration (including sitting
fees) paid by the Company to its Directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act and is not in excess of the limit laid down therein.

For Lodha & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.:301051E

R-P St
Place: Kolkata _ R. P. Singh
Date: April 19, 2023 O ] Partner

Membership No: 52438
UDIN: 23052438BGXSBQ3770
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE:

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of ESL Steel Limited of even date)

i) a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including gquantitative details
and situations of Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible Assets.

b. The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant and Equipment
in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to this program, a comprehensive
and detailed verification of Property, plant and Equipment and Capital Work in Progress was carried
out in earlier year by engaging the services of an Independent firm of professional and no such
verification has been carried out in this year. The discrepancies noted on such verification even
though material in certain cases had been properly dealt with in the books of account.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based
on the title documents, records, confirmation from Security Trustees provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds, comprising of all the immovable properties of land and building are held in the name
of the Company as on the balance sheet date except certain land for which lease deeds are yet to
be executed as detailed below: (Refer Note no. 5.3 of the financial statements).

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Area Gross Block
Land- Pending execution of Lease Deed 325.19 acres 10,413.50
Land- Pending compliance of compensatory | 455.35 acres 30,164.24
afforestation*

*Amount includes estimated cost for land towards compensatory afforestation capitalized as Right
of Use (ROU) Assets, pending clearance from MoEF.

As stated in Note no. 5.3, the title deed with respect to above land are to be regularised after
obtaining necessary approvals of the authorities and charge holders.

d. The company is not following revaluation model of accounting and has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) and Intangible Assets during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3 (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e. As per the information and explanation given to us and as represented by the management, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, further reporting under Clause 3
(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i) a. As informed, the inventories of the Company except for materials in transit and stock lying with
third parties at year end have been physically verified by the independent firm of professionals
along with the management during the year. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedure followed
for such verification is appropriate. As the Company’s inventory of raw materials comprises mostly
of bulk materials such as coal, coke, iron ore, etc. requiring technical expertise for quantification,
the Company has hired an independent agency for the physical verification of the stock of these
materials. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification between the physical stock and book
stock of inventories to the extent verified during the year, were not 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(R
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b.  According to the information and explanation given to us the company has been sanctioned working
capital limit in excess of Rupees Five Crores on the basis of securities of Current Assets of the
company. On the basis of examination of returns/statements submitted by the Company to the
banks in this respect, as provided to us for the purpose, these were in agreement with the books
and records and the financial statements prepared therefrom by the management.

iii) The Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee of security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, clause 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at March 31, 2023 from public covered under Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder and therefore, the provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the company.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the
Act in respect of the Company’s products to which the said rules are made applicable and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed records have been maintained. We have however, not
made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

vii) a. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has
generally been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Investor Education Protection fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to it. Further, there were no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues in arrear as at March 31, 2023 for a
period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

b. Disputed dues of sales tax, income tax, customs duty, wealth tax, excise duty, service tax, and Cess,
if any, prior to the effective date i.e., June 04, 2018 stand extinguished in terms of the resolution
plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT. This is supported by the legal opinion taken by the company and
various judicial pronouncements on the said matter. Having regard to this, there are no dues of
Provident Fund, Investor Education Protection fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii) In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us and as represented by
the management, we have neither come across nor have been informed of transactions which were
previously not recorded in books of account and that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix) a.  Inouropinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us by the management, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions,
banks or debenture holders.

b.  According to the information, explanations and representation given to us by the management, we
report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution

or government or any government authority. i
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¢. In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us by the management,
the Company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that fund
raised on short term basis have been utilized for operational short-term purposes and losses arising
therefrom and therefore generally has not been used for property, plant and equipment, making
loans or investments and other such long term purposes.

e. Inouropinion and on the basis of examination of the books of records the company does have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the
Order is not applicable.

x) a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xi) a.  During the course of our examination of books of account carried out during the year in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across incidence of any

material fraud by or on the company nor have we been informed of any such case by the
management.

b.  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us and representation received from the management, a report under
Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 has not been filed with the Central Government.

c. As represented to us by the management and as far as ascertained from examination of books of
and records in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have taken into
consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year and those
considered relevant and material have been taken into account while determining the nature,
timing and extent of audit procedures.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv) a. The Internal audit of the Company has been carried out by a firm of Chartered Accountants. The
system followed, in our opinion, is generally commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b.  Further, we have considered, during the course of our audit, the reports of the internal auditor for
the period under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till the date of our audit, in
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures in accordance with the guidance
provided in SA 610 “Using the work of Internal Auditors”.

R
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Xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the
management and based on our examination of the records, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi) a.  In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

b.  The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance Activities without a
valid certificate of registration as required under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c.  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d. In our opinion and based on the representation received by us from the management, there is no
core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

xvii) On the basis of overall examination of the financial statement, the Company has incurred cash losses

during the financial year covered by our audit but has not incurred cash losses in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors, Management plans as provided to us including as stated in
Note no. 46(f)(iii)(a) and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts and assumptions as represented
to us up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due for payment.

Xx) The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not

applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

xxi) The company does not have any subsidiary/assaciate hence consolidated financial statements are
not applicable to the company and thereby reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable

For Lodha & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's ICAI Registration No.:301051E

RP-Suwryy
Place: Kolkata _ S X R. P. Singh
Date: April 19, 2023 ;i Partner

Membership No: 52438
UDIN: 23052438BGXSBQ3770
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report the Members of ESL Steel Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of ESL Steel
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated under the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations
of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (“COSO 2013”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
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company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in COSO
2013,

For Lodha & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.:301051E

5 R.P-Swri2

Place: Kolkata eSaaanens’c R. P. Singh

Date: April 19, 2023 Partner

Membership No: 52438
UDIN: 23052438BGXSBQ3770
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ESL STEEL UWNTED
BALAMCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31. 2023

Particulars Noin Mo.

ASSETS

et

(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 5

o] Capital work-n-progress [

(e Other intangble Acsets 7

(¢  Fnancisl Assses:
(1) Ottver Pinanctal Azt 8

m Mon Curment Tiex Assets (net) 9

@  Deferred Tan Amats (net) 43

M) Other Non-Curnent Assets 10
Total Non-Curment Assets

Cument assets

(3l eventories u

M) Fnandal Assets
1) investments 12
(W) Trade Recetvables b E]
(W) Cash and Cash Equivabents 4
[v) Bank Balances other than (i) sbove 15
() Other Financlal Assets 16

(& Other Current Assets 17
Totad Carrent Amsets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND UABIITIES

Equity

(a}  Equity Share Capital 18

b} Other Eguity 13
Total Equity

Liabilihes

Mon-current fabBties

(8 Fnancil Lisbiltes:
{1} Bormowlngs - ]
(1) Leass Lisbity

bl Provsions a
Totsl Non-Current Usbilfties

Cuwmant Rabilites

{al  Amandal Ushilites:
) Bormowings n
M) Lasse Unbifities £
(W) Operational Buyery' Credit / Suppllens’ Credit 5
[ Trae Payabies a

- Total Outwanding dues of micro and small entarprises
- Total Outstanding dues of creditors othar than micro and
snall enterprises
(v) Ocher Fngncial Liabiites
(b} Other Current Lnbiiites
[ Provisons
Total Current Usbillties
Total Ushillties
TOTAL EQUITY AND LWABH TS

SPVAGE accounting polGes 3nd SIheT YCMPARYIRg oS 1115 311 Torm a0 iniegral part of e ol s

As per our report of even date For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
. ] E v
> M
- ) o,
'é iu-u Aaiish lismer Gupta
(DN ; 070671000 (Dw : Ore0801 2]

QJ,D Mot BloudUary

Anand Prakash Oubey Manish Eurmes Crassdhary
Chief Financial OMicer MG, ACS 23037
Company Secratary




ESL STEEL UMITED

STATEMENT OF PHUFT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Rs. i Lok
Particulars Nare No. Yeor endud
March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products 64743478
Other Operating Income 12,152.13
Total Revenue from Operations 6,55,586.91
Other Income 20,396.88
Total Income 6,79,983.79
Expenses
Cost of Materhls Consumed 45935453
Changes in inventories of Finished/ Semi-Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade (25,000.09)
Empioyee Benefits Expense 15,158.68
Fnance Costs 3382202
Depreciation and Amortisat:on Expense 34,529.97
Other Expenses 1,52.850.69
Total Expenses 5,71,715.80
Prufit/ (Loss) before exceptions] items and tax 8,267.99
Exceptional Items I5,847.67]
Profit/ (loss) before tax 242032
Tas expense:
1) Current tax
(2) Income Tax for earller years
(3) Deferred Tax 11,879.51
Profit/ {loss) for the year {9,459.19)
Other Comprehensive Incomme:
{1} items that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss {309.54)
{1} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 108.17
Other Comprehensive income |net of taxes] (201.37)
Total Comprahensive Incoma for the year (comprising of Profit/{Loss) and Other
Comprehensive (ncome for the year) (9.660.56]
Eaming par Equity Share [Face value of Ra. 10 sach]:
Basic and Diluted {051}

As per our report of even date

For Lodha & Ca,
Chartered Accountants

RP. Singh \C

Place: Kolkata
Deted: April 19, 2023

For and on behalt of the Poard of Directors

G

Mishl_rﬁ;w
(DIN : 07147100) (DIN = 07808012)
] Director Whole Time Director
¥ - \Jtlb\&"-(‘*f
s Waa’a o
Anand Prakash Dubey Manith Kumar Chaudhary
Chief Financial Officer M.No. ACS 23037

Company Secretary




ESL STEEL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Particulars

(Rs. in lakhs)

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustment to reconcile Profit/(Loss) before tax to net cash generated from operating activities

Provision against Compliance Cost for Environmental Clearence
Provision against Capital work in progress

Adjustments pertaining to land

Provision for Obsolete and Non-moving Storas and Spares
Depreciation and amortization expenses

Loss/(profit) on sale/discard of fixed assets

Sundry Credit balances/Provision no longer required written back
Sundry Balances written-off

Unrealised {gain)/ Loss on foreign currency translation and transaction
Net gain/(loss) on Derivative Instruments on fair valuation through profit and loss

Interest Income

Net Gainf(loss) on Current Investments on Fair Valuation through profit and loss

Impairment Allowance for doubtful debts, Advances and deposits
Finance Cost

Operating profit before Working Capital Changes
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories

(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables, Other financial/Non-Financial liabilities and Provisions

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables

Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances, Other financial/non-financial asets and other assets

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Income taxes (paid)/refund (net)
Net Cash flow generated / (used In) Operating Activities (A)

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments including intangible assets and movement in

Capital Work in Progress
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipments

Movement in Fixed Deposits and other bank balances (having original maturity of more than

three months)

Investment in mutual funds .
Sale Proceeds on disposal of mutual funds
Interest received

Net Cash flow generated / (used in) investing Activitles (8)

Cash flow from Financing Activities

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Payment of Lease Liability

Interest and other borrowing cost paid

Net Cash flow generated / (used in) Financing Activities (C)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note no. 14)

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

2,420.32

634.49
4,587.67
565.51
76.94
34,529.97
260.20
(8,820.26)
6,722.73
751.92
{200.26)
(6,245.69)
(616.92)
65.30
3382202

68,613,94

(54,491.71)
3739%0.82
(2.440.30)

1,06,413.69

1,55,486.04
(343.96)

1,55,142.08

(77.921.95)

356
(33,443.05)

(2,25,488.73)
2,48,979.70
13,588.24

(74,282.23)

(45,512.96)
(7,164.89)
(33,852.97)

(5,670.97)
12,082.00

6,411.03




ESL STEEL UMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Motes
1. The above Statement of Cash fow has been prepared under Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™ 35 notifled under
Companies Act, 2013
Mh""!‘m
T Aaat As at
rm— Merch31,2022| Cmshflows® |  Non-Cash Flows March 31, 2023
|Non-current bormowings [Refer Note no. 20 2,40,202.51 (45,653.76)| 1,94 54875
Current maturities of long term debt [Refer Note no. 2] 46,041.60 (46,041.60) 46,041.60 46,041.60
(Finance Lease Uabilities [Refer Note no, 39] 213,469.34 (10.240.47) 5,773.50 19,002.37
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings [Refer Note
|=n.n1 L960.65 11,960.65] B56.85 856.85
“Includes cash flows on account of both principal and interest
3. Cash and cash ¢qunvalents consists of the following for the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement:
Perticular Asat
March 31, 2002
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 4411.03
Fixed Dy its with original y of less than 3 th 2,000.00
Total cash and cash equivalents [Refer Nota No. 14) 641103

Slignificant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 51 form an integral part of the finandel statements

As per our report of even date
For Lodha & Co,
Chartered Accountants

R-P-Suwrg
R.P. Singh
Partner

Place: Kolkata
Dated: April 19, 2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sengittvity: Confidential (C2)

(DIN : 07147100)
Non-Executive Director

Ansnd Prakash Dubey
Chief Financtal Dfficer
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ESL STEEL LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION
ESL Steel Limited (“ESL” or “the Company”) is a public limited company in India having its registered office at, Siyaljori, P.O. Jogidih,
O.P. Bangaria, P.S. Chandankyari, Bokaro, Jharkhand and is engaged in the manufacture and supply of Billats, TMT Bars, Wire Rods
and Ductile Iron{DI) Pipes and also deals in iron Ore, Pig Iron and Iron and Steel Scrap products generated while or for the purpose of
manufacturing these products. It also produces Metallurgical Coke, Sinter and Power for captive consumption. The Company caters

to the needs of construction, automobile, industrial machinery and equipments and water Infrastructure development. The company
is a subsidiary of Vedanta Limited.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i

__'l.i_k;ély.to have material impact on the financial statements of the company.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “ind AS”) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”). The Company has complied with Ind As issued, notified and made effective till the date of authorisation of the
financial statements.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Indian Accounting Standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing Indian Accounting Standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Application of new and revised standards:

Effective April 01, 2022, the company has adopted the amendments vide Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Ammendment Rules, 2022 notifying amendment to existing Ind AS. These amendments to the extent relevant to the
company's operation were relating to Ind AS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment” which clarifies that excess of net sale
proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the
directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment and Ind AS 37 "Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" which specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’, Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an

example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

There were other amendments in various standards including Ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”,
Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations”, Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments®, and Ind AS 41 "Agriculture” which have not been
listed herein above since these are not relevant to the company.

Revision in these standards did not have any material impact on the profit/loss and earning per share for the year.
Recent accounting pronouncements

On March 31, 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has made certain amendments to existing Ind AS vide Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2023. These amendments to the extent relevant to the company's operation
include amendment to Ind AS 1 “Presentation of Financlal Statements” which requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors” which has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and include amendments to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates . Further consequential amendments with
respect to the concept of material accounting policies have also been made in ", Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” and Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”.

There are other amendments in various standards including Ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”,
Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations, Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments " Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Cantracts with Customers”,
Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes™ which has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to

transactions that give rise to equal and cffsetting temporary differences and Ind AS 102 “Share-based Payment” which have
not been listed herein above since these are not relevant to the company.

Even though the company will evaluate the impact of above, none of these 3 Sguch are vital in nature and are not
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

iv.

3 SIGNI
A.

Rh

KOLKAT

'Camtal Work-in-Progress (net of income earned during the project development stage).

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors. The revision to these financial statements is

permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per
provisions of the Act.

FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventlion on accrual basis except for

a) certain financial instruments that are measured in terms of relevant ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each
reporting period;

b) certain class of Property, Plant and Equipment which on the date of transition have been fair valued to be considered as
deemed costs; and

c) Defined benefit plans- Plan Assets measured at fair value

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Ind AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and Schedule lIl to the Companies Act, 2013. Having
regard to the nature of business being carried out by the Company, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current and non-current classification.

The functional currency of the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal
lakhs except otherwise stated.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to
observe inputs employed for such measurements:

a) Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

b)  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly for the asset
or liability.

c)  Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market data.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair value. This includes a finance

team headed by Chief Financial Officer who has overall responsibility for overseing all significant fair value measurements who

regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and fair value hierarchy under which the valuation

should be classified.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, construction and subsequent improvements thereto less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose cost includes deemed cost on the date of transition
i.e. have been fair valued to be considered as deemed costs and comprises purchase price of assets or its construction cost
including inward freight, duties and taxes (net of input credit availed) and other expenses related to acquisition or installation

and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended for its use.

Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives and material value and subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account
of capital improvement ar other factors are accounted for as separate components.

The cost of replacing part of an item of PPE is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of PPE are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. Assets to be disposed off are
reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

The company's leased assets (other than those dealt hereunder as Mining Assets) comprises of land, building, plant and
machinery etc and these have been seperately shown/disclosed under PPE as Right of Use (ROU) Assets.

Direct Expenditure on implementation of the project prior to commencement of production_and stabilization thereof for
commercial production of the respective plant facility, are classified as Project Developme i anc disclosed under

(S
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Capital work in progress includes Project Development expenditure, equipment to be installed, construction and erection costs,
etc. Such cots are added to the related items of PPE and are classifed to the appropriate categories when comgleted and ready
for its intended use.

C.  LEASES

The Company’s lease assets (other than those dealt hereunder as Mining Assets) primarily consist of leases for land, office
space, transit houses, vehicles, plant and equiments, furnitures and fixtures etc. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-cf-use asset ("ROU”} and a corresponding lease
liability where applicable for all lease arrangements, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases)
and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options ta extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets

and lease fiabilities include these options considerd for arriving at ROU and lease liabilities when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental barrowing
rates of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. ROU asset are separately
presented/disclosed under PPE. Lease lizbility obligations is presented seperately under the head "Financial Liabilities" and
lease payments are classified as financing cash flows.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease. Direct costs incurred in this respect are added to the

said cost and |ease incentives if any are deducted therefrom. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

D. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation on PPE except otherwise stated, is provided as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 on straight line method

over the estimated useful lives. Certain Plant and Machinery have been considered Continuous Pracess Plant on the basis of

technical assessment. Depreciation on upgradation of Property, Plant and Equipment is provided over the remaining useful life
of the entire component/ PPE,

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Based on above, the estimated useful lives
of assets for the current period are as follows:

Category Useful life
Buildings Upto 60 years
Roads Upto 10 years
Plant and machinery Upto 40 years
Computer equipment 3 to 6 years
Furniture and fixtures, Electrical Installation and Laboratory Equipments 10 Years
Railway Sidings 15 Years
Office equipment 5 Years
Vehicles
< Motor cycles, scooters and other mopeds 10 Years
- Others 8 Years

- For Buildings and Plant and Machinery, the useful life has been determined based,

i .;_,;".fgy‘gluaticn carried out by technical experts. The useful life in case of remaining ass
R-PJ "fﬁc’("lxl.The company believes that the useful life as given above represents the periot#6/e
OLKATA gt

agsessment and independent
as per Schedule Il of the
pany expects to use the

- A

\
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
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Major Furnance relining are depreciated over a periad of 15 years (average expected life)

Pipe Moulds of 350 MM and above are depreciated over a period of three years. Other such moulds are charged to
tonsumption in the year of issue.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset.

Mining Rights capitalised as Intangible Assets are amortised on unit of production basis over total estimated remaining
commercial proved and probable mine reserve of respective mines.

Other Intangible Assets i.e. Computer Software are amortised over useful life using straight line method over a period of 3-5
years.

Machinery Spares which can be used in connection with an item of PPE and whose use are expected to be irregular, are
amortised over the useful life of the respective PPE.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date,

MINING ASSETS
Acquisition Costs
Costs associated with acquisition of lease/licenses and rights to explore, stamp duty, registration fees and other such costs are

capitalised as Mining Rights and classified under Intangible Assets. Other assets pertaining to mining operations are capitalised
under respective head of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Bid premium and royalties payable with respect to mining operations is contractual obligation for carrying out the mining
operation, The said obligations are variable and linked to market prices of the mining produce. The Company has accounted for
the same as expenditure on accrual basis and considered as cost of the mining produce as and when related liability in this
respect arises as per respective agreements/ statute.

Exploration and evaluation
Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred after obtaining the mining right or the legal right to explore are capitalised as
exploration and evaluation assets (intangible assets) and stated at cost less impairment. Exploration and evaluation assets are

assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of an exploration and evaluation
asset may exceed its recoverable amount.

The Company measures its exploration and evaluation assets at cost and classifies as Property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets according to the nature of the assets acquired and applies the classification consistently. To the extent that
tangible asset is consumed in developing an intangible asset, the amount reflecting that consumption is capitalised as a part of
the cost of the intangible asset. Exploration expenditure includes all direct and allocated indirect expenditure associated with

finding specific mineral resources which includes depreciation and applicable operating costs of related support equipment
and facilities and other costs of exploration activities

Stripping cost

Developmental stripping costs in order to obtain access to quantities of mineral reserves that will be mined in future periods

are capitalised as part of mining assets. Capitalisation of developmental stripping costs ends when the commercial production
of the mineral reserves begins.

Production stripping costs are incurred to extract the ore in the farm of inventories and/or to improve access to an additional
component of an ore body or deeper levels of material. Production stripping costs are accounted for as inventories to the
extent the benefit from production stripping activity is realised in the form of inventories.

Other production stripping cost incurred are expensed In the statement of profit and loss.

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surface mine is recognised as part of mining assets to the extent
the current pencd strlppmg cost exceeds the average period stripplng cost over the life uf mine and recognised as an asset if

Developmental stripping costs are presented along with the related mining rights and/d
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

- (iii) at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Site restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs.

Provision is made for costs associated with restoration and rehabilitation of mining sites as soon as the obligation to incur such
costs arises. Such restoration and closure costs are typical of extractive industries and they are normally incurred at the end of
the life of the mine. The costs are estimated on the basis of mine closure plans and the estimated discounted costs of
dismantling and removing these facilities and are capitalised along with mining assets. The provision for decommissioning
assets is based on the current estimates of the costs for removing and decommissioning production facilities, the forecast
timing of settlement of decommissioning liabilities and the appropriate discount rate. A corresponding provision is created on
the liability side. The capitalised asset is charged to profit and loss over the life of the asset through amortisation over the
useful life of the respective mining area and the provision is increased in each period by unwinding the discount considered for
arriving at the present value. Management estimates are based on local legislation and/or other agreemeénts which are
reviewed periodically.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition/deemed cost on transition date, comprising of purchase price inclusive of
taxes and duties (net of Input Credit) less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

DERECOGNITION OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
An item of PPE/ROU/Intangible assets is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE/Intangible Assets is

determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Tangible, Intangible and ROU assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstances
indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of assets either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assets’ fair value less cost to disposal and its value in use. In

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of the assets are discounted to their present value at
appropriate rate.

Impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each reporting
period the impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying amount of
the asset is Increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of

depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs diractly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled within
operating cycle of the company or otherwise these are classified as non-current.

Financial assets are intially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquistion or issue of financial
assets ( other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or are deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets as appropriate in intial recognition. However, trade receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:

(i) at amortised cost,

(i) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL) or at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to
which they relate. Classification of financial instruments are determined on initial recognition.

i

i,

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ara solely payments of
principal and interest an the principal amount, are measured at amortized cost,

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities comprising of borrowings, trade and other payables subsequent to
initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, :

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability.

Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income {FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and
changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of para (i} and (i) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest
consists of consideration for the time value of money and associated credit risk.

Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income are classified as Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derivative and Hedge Accounting

The company enters into derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk
of changes in foreign exchange rates in respect of financial instruments and forecasted cash flows denominated in certain
foreign currencies. The Company uses hedging instruments which provide principles on the use of such financial
derivatives consistent with the risk management strategy of the Company. The hedge instruments are designated and
documented as hedges and effectiveness of hedge instruments is assesed and measured at inception and on an ongoing
basis to reduce the risk associated with the exposure being hedged.

Any derivative that is either not designated as a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109 “Financial
Instruments”, is categorized as a financial asset/liability, at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs attributable
to the same are also recognized in statement of profit and loss. Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging
instrument designated as a fair value hedge are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognized in other

comprehensive income and presented within equity as cash flow hedging reserve to the extent that the hedge is
effective.

Hedging instrument which no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
then hedge accounting Is discontinued prospectively. Any gain ar loss recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity remains therein till that time and thereafter to the extent hedge accounting being discontinued is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. When a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss accumulated in equity is transferred to the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if

objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.
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The company measures the loss allowance for a financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.
In case of trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the
company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

vii. Derecognition of financial instruments
The Company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows

from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

On derecognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial liabilities are derecognized if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or
cancelled. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid
and payable is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

viii. Dffsetting financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be

enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the

counterparty. |
ix. Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date
of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are
unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

J.  INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventories is ascertained on ‘weighted average’
basis. Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost in respect of raw materials and stores and spares includes expenses incidental to procurement of the same. Cost in
respect of finished and semi-finished goods represents direct and indirect cost for bringing the inventory to present situation
and condition including cost of material plus costs of conversion, comprising of labor costs and an attributable proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on normal levels of activity. Cost of mining iron ore inventory includes bid premium, royalties,
other overheads and costs incurred for mining,.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and -
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

By-products and scrap are valued at net realisable value.

K.  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in fareign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
the transactions. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date are translated at the reporting date
exchange rates. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. The loss or gain thereon and also on the exchange differences on
settlement of the foreign currency transactions during the year are recognized as income or expense in the statement of Profit

and Loss account, Foreign exchange gain/loss to the extent considered as an adjustment tola

Cost are considered as part
.. of borrowing cost.
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L.

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Par value of the equity shares is recorded as share capital and the amount received in excess of par value is classified
as Securities Premium.

Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects,

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognized as a
provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obiigation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised and disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises

from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable
estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statement by way of notes when inflow of econamic benefit
is probable.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are accrued in the year in which services are rendered by the employee.
Short-term Employee Benefits

Short term Employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which services are
rendered.

Post-employment Benefit Plans
Contribution to defined cantribution plans such as Provident Fund etc. is being made in accordance with the statute and are
recognized as and when incurred.

Contribution to gratuity, superannuation etc., under defined benefit plans in keeping with the related scheme are recognised
as expenditure for the year.

In case of Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing the benefit is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method with
actuarial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income for the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, if any, and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, where
funded. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefit available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan,

Other Long-term Employee Benefits {Unfunded)
The cost of providing long-term employee benefits consisting of Leave Encashment is determined using Projected Unit Credit
Method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses and past service cost

are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which they occur. Long term employee benefit
abligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of related obligation.
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0.

... profits will be available against these can be utilized.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

i.  REVENUE FROM SALE OF PRODUCT
Revenue from contracts with customers is accounted for only when it has commercial substance, and all the following
criteria are met:
(i} parties to the contract have approved the contract and are committed to performing their respective obligations;

[ii) each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred and payment terms there against can be
indentified;

(iii) consideration in exchange for the goods or service to be transferrad is collectible and determinable.

The revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performace obligation, when control over the goods or services has been
transferred and/or goods/ services are delivered/ provided to the customers. Delivery occurs when the goods haven been
shipped or delivered to a specific location, and the customer has either accepted the goods under the contract of the
Company has sufficient evidence that all the criteria for acceptance have been satisfied,

Discount as estimated based on expected sales volume or otherwise is deducted from Revenue from Operations. Past
experience is used to estimate the discounts, using the most likely method and revenue is recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

The Company provides warranties for defects, replacement etc. that existed at the time of sale based on histerical trend
and records.

ii.  INTEREST, DIVIDEND AND CLAIMS

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Interast has been accounted using
effective interest rate method. Insurance claims/ other claims are accounted as and when admitted / settled.

ii. EXPORT BENEFITS

Export incentives are accounted for in the year of export if the entitiements and realisability thereof can be estimated
with reasonable accuracy and conditions precedent to such benafit is fulfilled.

BORROWING COST

Borrowing cost comprises of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrawing of the funds. All borrowing
costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method except to the extent attributable to
qualifying Property Plant Equipment (PPE), minining assets or other intangible assets which are capitalized to the cost of the
related assets. A qualifying asset necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent considered as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development cost (other than cost of fixed assets acquired) are charged as an expense in the year in which they
are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognized on systematic basis when there is reasonable certainty of realization of the same. Revenue
grants including subsidy/rebates are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss Account under “Other Operating Income” or
deducted from the related expenses for the period to which these are related. Grants which are meant for purchase,
construction or otherwise acquire non current assets are recognized as Deferred Income and disclosed under Non Current
Liabilities and transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the respective asset.

Grants relating to non-depreciable assets is transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods that bear the cost of
meeting the obligations related to such grants.

TAXES ON INCOME

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is recognized in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from
the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial
Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generall
differences with respect to carry forward of any unused tax losses/depreciation tg
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V.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the

Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Defarred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is

settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) measured in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely
to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability and such benefits can be
measuread reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with asset will be realized.

The carfying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered

for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are identified and reported taking into account the different risk and return, organisation structure and
tha internal reporting provided to the chief-operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible

for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Segment manager
who allocates resources and assess the operating activities, financial results, forecasts, or plans for the segment.

BUYERS' CREDIT/ SUPPLIER'S' CREDIT and VENDOR FINANCING

The Company enters into arrangements whereby banks and financial institutions make direct payments to suppliers for raw
materials and project materials. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date
providing working capital timing benefits. These are normally settled up to twelve months for raw materials and up to 36
months for the project materials. Where these arrangements are with a maturity of up to twelve months, the economic

substance of the transaction is determined to be operating in nature and these are recognised as operational buyers’ credit/
suppliers' credit and disclosed on the face of the balance sheet.

Interest expense on these are recognised in the finance cost. Payments made by banks and financial institutions to the
operating vendors are treated as a non-cash item and settlement of operational buyer's credit/ suppliers' credit by the
Company is treated as cash flows from operating activity reflecting the subtsance of the payment.

Where such arrangements are with a maturity beyond twelve months and up to thirty six months, the economic substance of
the transaction is determined to be financing In nature, and these are presented within borrowings In the balance sheet.
Payments made to vendors are treated as cash item and disclosed as cash flows from operating/ investing activity depending

on the nature of the underlying transaction. Settlement of dues to banks and financial institution are treated as cash flows
from financing activity.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of ind AS requires management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates
cauld change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are
made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Differences between the actual

results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are known / materialized and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,

R

AT
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Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments and the use of
assumptions in the financial statements have been disclosed below. The notes provide an overview of the areas that involved a
high degree of judgement or complexity and of items which are likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed, Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant note together with information about basis of calculation of each affected line item in the
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation/assumptions at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
and related revenue impact within the next financial year are discussed beiow:

a)

o)

<)

ST

Depreciation / amortisation of and impairment loss on property, plant and aguipmant / intangible assets.
Property, plant and equipment, ROU and intangible assets are depreciated/amortized over the estimated useful lives in
accordance with Internal assessment and Independent evaluation carried out by technical expert/ Schedule Il of the

Companies Act, 2013 and estimate for proven and probable mineral reserve, taking into account the estimated residual
value, wherever applicable.

The company reviews its carrying value of its Tangible and Intangible Assets whenever there is objective evidence that
the assets are impaired. The required level of impairment losses to be made is estimated by reference to the estimated
value in use or recoverable amount. In such situation Assets' recoverable amount is estimated which is higher of asset's
or cash generating units {CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use the estimated
future cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rate which reflect the current assessment of time value of money.
in determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market realisations are considered or otherwise in absence of such
transactions appropriate valuations are adopted.

In earlier years, the company determined the recoverable amount of the CGU based on the transaction price in terms of
approved resolution plan and impairment with respect to carrying value of the assets was provided. This has been
reviewed based on the assumptions and adjustments for forecasts wich may vary subsequently. According to such
review, no further adjustment in the carrying value thereof has been considered essential. As at March 31, 2023, the

carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets and Capital Work in Progress is Rs. 6,25,264.63 lakhs
(March 31, 2022: Rs. 5,.91,573.63)

Arrangement contain leases and classification of leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option
to extend or terminate the |ease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on
the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options
to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as
any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease
and the importance of the underlying asset to the company's operations taking into account among other thing, the
location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed
to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Income taxes

Significant judgment s required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain expenses
during the estimation of the provision for income taxes. Also there are many transactions and assumptions during the
ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Further judgement is involved in
determining the deferred tax position on the balance sheet date.

The Company has significant amount of unused business and depreciation losses. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets (DTA) that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing for
utilisation thereof against taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies. The management has reviewed the
rationale for continuing recognition of DTA recognised in earlier years based on the likely timing and level of profitability
in future and expected utilisation of deferred tax thereagainst DTA recognised in earlier year has been continued to be
carried forward for future period and Rs. 22,503.93 lakhs representing business losses has not been recognised. Since
these are based on assumptions and projections and thereby are inherently uncertain. The amount of DTA may vary in
subsequent period depending upon then prevailing conditions, circumstances and profitability.

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

d)

e

f)

g)

h)

Going Concern assumption

As indicated in Note no. 44 of the financial statements, Hon’ble Supreme Court vide order dated December 09, 2021 has
set aside the impugned order and directed MoEF to process the EC Application of ESL as per the applicable law within a
period of three months, Further, the said Court has allowed the operation until the decision of MoEF, On receipt of EC,
necessary application for obtaining Consent to Establish (CTE) and then for Consent to Operate (CTO) will be made. Even
though there is uncertainity in this respect as on this date and considering that effective steps including procurement and
transfer of land to the forest department currently being undertaken for obtaining required clearances and EAC has
decided favourably on the matter and also the direction given by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India that operations of
steel plant shall not be interferred with on the ground of want of EC, the accounts of the company have been prepared
on going concern basis. ;

Mining Rights and Assets
Mine Reserve and Site restoration Cost

Provision for site restoration are estimated based on available information, taking into account applicable local legal

requirements, mining plans, data base based onsurvey report, current prices and discount rates. All assumptions are
reviewed annualy and variations are accounted for accordingly.

Commitment under MDPA arrangement

In terms of the Mine development and production agreement (‘MDPA’) signed with respect to two mine blocks the
Company is required to fulfil certain minimum production quantities each year from commencement of mining lease. In

the event the Company is unable to fulfil the required minimum production quantities, it would be liable to pay penalty,
as prescribed in the MDPA,

Based on management's evaluation of mining plan submitted and also as referred to in Note no. 40(A)(c), the accounts

have been prepared on the assumption that there will not be any shortfall with respect to minimum quantity stipulated
for production as required under MDPA.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

The present value of the defined benefit obligations and long term employee benefits depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ based on actual developments in future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, inflation, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and being

long-term in nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting period.

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The Company evaluates whether there is any objective evidence that trade recaivables are impaired and determines the
amount of impairment loss as a result of the inability of the debtars to make required payments. The Company bases the
estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, credit-worthiness of the trade receivables and historical write-

off experience. If the financial conditions of the trade receivable were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher
than estimated.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of

recognition and quantification cf the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change.

Management uses in-house and external legal professional to make judgment for estimating the possible outflow of

resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations/ against the Company as it is not possibie to predict the
outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

In accordance with ARP, contingent liabilities pricr to the effective date of NCLT Order have been extinguished which has
been further substantiated based on various judicial pronouncements including those of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India.
The said order of Hon'ble Supreme Court has been submitted to various judiclal authorities for disposal of the same and

-
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ESL STEEL LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(As. in lakhs)

Gross block includes certain property, plant and equipment Le. frechuld land which have been valued on Aprll 01, 2015 ie. the date of transition by an Ingependent Valuer and considercc as "deemed cost” resulting in increase in value

thereo! by Rs. 15,513 41 lakhs (March 31, 2022: s, 15,513.41 lakhs)
Gross bnok value of Railway siding includes Rs, 12,137.50 lakhs (March 31, 2022; fis 12,137.50 lakhs), incuried for construction of Railway siding ownership of which has not boen vested with the company.

ROU Land Leaschold Includes:-
2) Rs. 10,413 50 lakhs (March 31, 2022; Rs. 5,461.16 lakhs) in respect of 325.19 acres which are under process of regularisation by conversion to leasehold land (Including Rs.9.09 /.09 lakhs being amount paid sgainst demand niade for such

conversion pending execution of lease decd. Such Leasehold land has been accounted for In accordance with ind AS 116 with effect from April 01, 2019 pending exccution of Lease deed and has been amurtised considering a period of thirty
years from the date of demand/capitalisation; ;

b) Estimated eost of 455,35 acres of forest land amounting to Rs, 30,164.14 lakhs (on proportionate basis) including Ns. 23,552.55 lakhs (as dealt herein below under 5,3(d)) being est mated cost of compensatory land to be provised a5
compensation towards afforestation. The title deed for such land pertain to forest department pending compliance of requirement of afforestation and approval from respective authorities. The entire cost as estimated to be incurred in this
sespect, pending regularisation of title deed etc. and determination of amount it any in this respect has been contldered as ROU Assets and have been amortised considering a period of thirty years from the date of demand/capualisaton ;
and
¢} Necessary steps are belng taken for regularisation etc., as detailed in Note no. 44 In respect of above land and executlon of title/iease deed in this respect is subject to necessary approval from relevant autharities and charge holders.

d) In order to abtaln the Environmental Clearence as dealt with in Note no. 44, the company apart frum affurestation cost was required to provide five titmes of non-forest land in exchiunge of land used by the company for the Steel Plant and
Rs. 23,552.55 lakhs buing the cost as estimated by the management to be incurred and considered adequate for meeting the lisbility in this respect had been provided in the financial statemuents, Fuither, Rs, 6,621.69 lakhs being the NPV fur ==

area under utilisation as per the report of EIA consultant had also been capltalised In earlier year as ROU.

In earlier years, the Company had carried out the Impairment testing determining the Fair Value less cost to Sale and Value in Use. The said Valuation was been carried out by an Independent Valuer appointed in this respect.

For the said purpase, the entire Steel manufacturing facility consisting of DI Pipe, Wire Rud, TMT Bar, Steel Billets and Pig Iron was considered as a single unit for arriving at the value in use. This had been wytimuted us per the Uiscaunted Cash

Flow method based on future projections and assumptions.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined to be Rs. 6,08,186.00 |akhs 35 on that date and impairment of Rs. 5,11,193.01 lakhs was provided in that year, During the year, the assumption made fer impainent considenng the entire

block of tangible and Intangible assets and capital work in progress as on March 31, 2023 raking inta account the potential impact of varlation In custs, realisatiors ete, including those ansing with respect to iran ore mines and ulilisativn vt

produce thereof and subsequent additions/ adjustments 1o property, plant and equipment have been broadly reviewed lor consistency and as estimated no further impairment/revicsal thereof hay Leen Indiedted and provision for

impairment as determined and recognised in earlier year has remained unchanged.

Reter note. No. 20 in respert of charge created against borrowings. This Includes 325.15 acres of land to be converted 1o leasehold land as stated in Note no. 5.3(a] above.

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
As at
Particulars Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
Capltal Work in Progress 6.1
As per last Balance Sheel 95,301.02
Add: Addition during the year 10,327.51
(9.020.43)

. 111.573.04) 86.035.06

Less: Capitatisation during the year
Less: Adjustment during the year 36.1|b)

Project Development Expenditure 6.2
As per last Balance Sheet 68,832.61
Add: Finance Cost transferred from Staternent of Profit and Loss 33.: "
Less: Capltalisation during the year (5.276.12)
Less: Adjustment during the year 36.1{b} ] 710,02 54 Baf 47
i
STy
Impairment .
As per last Balance Sheet : (74,384 .39)
Less: Transfer to Property, Plant and Equiprnent 5,701.66
36.1(b)

(59,270.19) 9,412 .54 {59,270.19)

Less: Adjustiment during the year

80,611.34

Sensllivity: Confidentlal (€2}



ESL STEEL UMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)

6.1 The project undertaken in earller years for enhancing the production capacity from 1.5MTPA to L5/MTPA and those in nature of balancing equipment for attaining the operational efficiency and related costs consisting of one Blast Furnace,
Horizorial Coke Oven and other related equipments and facitities and selection of vendors etc, for the project Is under progress. Accardingly, Rs. 73,157.62 lakhs being cost of varlous plant and equipment acquired for the project in carlier years has
been carried forward as capital work in progress and Is proposed ta be used In the planned expansion project post technical evaluation and consequential adjustrments, as considered appropriate. Details in this respect and Incurred subsequently

pending completion are given in 6.3 and 6.4 belaw.

6.2 Project Development Expenditure

‘Project Development Expenditure’ as given in 6{b) above, répresents proportionate Interest and other directly attributable expenditure related to the above project accounted pending allocation to the respective assets and/or otherwise tu be

adjusted on completion of the project.

6.4 Agemg Schedule of Capital Work In Progress
2 t in CWIP for a Period of Amount in CWIF for 8 Period of
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 As at More than 3 As at
Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years March 31,2023 | Less than 1 Year | 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years March 31, 2022 | -~
| Projects in Progress
Capacity Expansion and Efficiency Upgradation 56,569.90 134,14 3 69,985.48 1,26,709.52 1,624 57 - 69,985 48 72,810.05
Sustalning Capex- Modification and Addition 2,535.61 b20.02 30.79 - 3,186.42 7.458.66 342.63 = 7,801.29

6.4 Projects Overdue and expected Completion date

a) The capacity expansion project from 1.5 MTPA 1o 2,57 MTPA which was started as a part of the main project was required to be completed within three years in terms of the resolution plan approved by Hon'ble NCLT on April 17,

2018, However, this could not be c

pleted due ta pending lssue of CTO as dealt with in Note no. 44. Effective steps are being taken towards obtaining the C10 and the project will be completed subsequent to such approval.

b) Status with respuct to other projects are as follows:
Amaunt in CWIP to be pleted in P %5%8:. pleted in
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 Asat More than 3 As at

Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years narch 31, 2023 Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years |March 31, 2022
Sustalning Capex- Modification and Addition
5M5 PLANT 307.76 - 1 307.76 49,88 - 44 88
POWER PLANT 90.05 90.05 - -
1RON ORE MINES 271.68 271.68 B .
REAAR ML 45.00 = 45.00 .
BF2 388 06 388.06 186.67 - 1BG.67
BF3 63.00 63.00 N 3,795.06 3,795.06
[cOMN FACLITY 1,198.07 1,198.07 1,674.55 1.674.55
QA-1Z 149 48 - 149.48 - =
qas? 2.72 - 2.72 = ey .
V. COKEOVEN 305.19 305.19 310,93 . 310.83
DIP 28.80 28.80 1740 . 17.40 |
SINTER PLANT - - 98384 - 983,85 |

A

AT LN o T
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ESL STEEL LUIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

7. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at

(Rs. In lakhs)

hh..._ﬂm:u

March 31, Adjustments | March 31, | March 31, period Adjustments | March 31, March 31, | period | Adjustments | March 31, | March 31, 2023

Particulars 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023
Computer Scftwares 1,596.24 474.02 2,070.26 509.82 338.44 - 848.26 54.66 - 54,66 1,157.34
Mining Assets 53,892,03 927,79 54,819.82 728.06 2.47 - 9,170.53 - . 45,649.29

53,892.03

7.1 Refer note. No. 20 in respect of charge created against borrowings.
7.2 Lease deed in respect of lron Ore and Manganese Block with Lease Area of 117.21 Hectares having proposed mining plan of 1,56,58,750 MT in Nadldihl lron and Manganese Ore Block Village and another Iron Ore Biock with
Lease Area of 74.50 Hectares having proposed mining plan of 2,25,22,752 Mt In Nadldihi lron Ore Block Viliage allotted to the company had been executed an November 20, 2021 with the Government of Odisha. The
commercial operation of these mines had commenced on February 11, 2022 and Rs, 53,892.03 |akhs being costs incurred for acquisition of licences, rights for mining, stamp duty, registration fee and other such costs till the
said date had been capitalised as Mining Rights and shown under Intangible Assets.
7.3 Mining Assels represents expenditure incurred in relation to acqulsition of mining rights, mine development expenditure post development of technical and commercial feasibility and restoration obligations as per applicable
regulations. This includes Stripping Activity Assets amounting to Rs, 647.50 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Nil)

Sensitivity. Conlfldential (C2)

March 31, Adjustments | March 31, | March 31, period Adjustments | March 31, March 31, | perlod | Adjustments | March 31, 2022
Particulars 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
Computer Softwares A34.12 762.12 1,596.24 353.49 156,33 509.82 54.66 54.66 1,031.76
Mining Assets - 53,892.03 - 728.06 728,06 - 53,163.97




NOIES | O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

11

{Rs, in lakhs)
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars As at
Refer Note No. Maich 31, 2022
{a) Security Deposits
Considered good 303.59
Considered doubtful 63.91
Less: Impairment Allowance for doubtful deposit (63.91)
(b} Fixed Deposits with Banks (having original maturity of more than 12 months) 15.2 8,177.31
(e} Interest receivable on fixed depasits 152 142.81
8,623.71
8.1 Movement of Impalrment Allowances for doubtful deposits
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Recognised during the year
Reversal during the year
Balance at the end of the year
NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS [NET)
Particulars
Refar Nota No.
Advance Income Tax including Tax deducted at source
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars
Refer Note No.
{a} Capltal advances
{b) Prepald Expenses
INVENTORIES
Particulars Asat
Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
(a)  Raw Materials 5§3,149.50
(b) Raw Materials in transit 4,493.37
(] Semi Finised Goods/ Work In Progress 30,577.35
(d} Finished Goods 2,311.86
(e  Finished Gaods in transit 486.75
n Stares and Spares 111 22,751.85
Less: Provision for Obsolets and Non-moving Stores and Spares 112 (4,275.10)
{g)  Storesand Spare Parts in transit 1,663.45
Less: Provision for Obsolets and Non-moving Stores and Spares 112 {41.54)
(A} Scrapand By Products
gt : 1,17,967.10
11.1 Stores and Spares stock includes stock of DI Pipe Mould of size 350 mm and above amounting to Rs. 323.28 lakhs (March 31, 2022; 707.38 lakhs).
11.2 The Company has a policy of provisi gainst obsolete and non-moving stores and spares for a period above two years. The movement in provisions are as follows:
For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,239.70
Recognised during the year 76.94
feversal during the year -
Balance at the end of the year 416,64

11.3 Also refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created against borrowings

= gl
{ KOLKATA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN I3 FOR IHE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)
12 INVESTMENTS
. As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
Investmants measured at fair value through Profit and Loss Units Amount
Investment in Mutual Funds (unquoted) b
{a) Tata Liquid Fund- Direct Plan- Growth Option (Face Value: Rs.
1,000} et 25 89,308.44 3,001.17
(b} Axis Ovemnight Fund- Direct Growth Plan {Face Value: Rs. 100) : - 1,78,017 88 2,000.64
|c) Tata Overnight Fund- Direct Plan- Growth Option (Face Value: Rs. g <
100) e 3 F 1,78,365.82 2,000.27
{d) Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund- Regular Growth Plan (Face value:
Rs. 100) 13,14,007.33 4,508.68
() HDFC Overnight Fund- Direct Growth Plan (Face Value: Rs. 10) o 63,350.99 2,000.28
{f}) ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund- Direct Plan - Growth Option (Face
Value: Rs. 100) ¥ 17,45,645.06 2,000.65
(g) ICICI Prudential Lquid Fund- Direct Plan- Growth Option (Face
Value: Rs. 100) 7,94,345.19 2,504.22
18,015.91
12,1 Aggregate amount of guoted Investments in Mutual Funds 1,003.39 18,01591
12.2 Aggregate amount of NAY of Investments in Mutual Funds 2,003.39 18,015.91
12.3 Particulars of Investments as required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed herein above.
12.4 Also refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created against borrowings
13 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Particulars AT
Refer Note Na March 31, 2022
Unsecured
Considered good 13a 7,822.16
Considared good, having significant increase in Credit Risk 131 235.66
Credit Impaired 11253
Less: impairment Allowance for doubtful debts 132 (112.53)
&

13.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule based on the due date for payment there against are as follows:
Particulars

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Goad
Within the credit period
Less than 6 Months.
6 months - 1 Year
1-2 Years
23 years
More than 3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Significant increase in Credit Risk
6 months - 1 Year
1-2 Years
-3 years

Disputed Trade Receivables- Cradit impaived
Lass than 6 Manths
6 months - 1 Year
1-2 Years
2-3 years
Mare than 3 years

13.2 Movement of Impairment Allowances for doubtful debts
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Recognised during the year
Reversal during the year
Balance at the end of the year S 4
133 Also refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge créated againsi borrawings
R ";'W.:_,_ X




NOTES TO FINANCIAL S 1A | EMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

{Rs. in lakhs)
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Asat
pm Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
{a) Balances with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 4,411.03
(b} Fixed Deposits with ariginal maturity of Jess than 3 months 2,000.00
N— A
14.1 Also refer Note no. 43 In respect of charge created against borrowings
15 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at
S Refer Note No, March 31, 2022
(a) Balances with Banks:
~1n Current Accounts 15.1and 153 3.65
(o) Fixed Deposits with Banks (having original maturity of more than 3 months) 15.1and 15.2 53,554.30
53,557.95

15.1 Refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created against borrowings
15.2 Fixed Deposits with banks includes:

3} Rs. 15,967.33 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 56,188.08 lakhs lakhs) (inciuding Rs. 8,780.54 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 3,185.71 Lakhs) disclosed under other non-current assats)
which have been lodged with bank as margin money against Letter of Credit/Bank Guarantees/OD Facilities issued/granted by them; and

b) Rs. 658.98 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Ks. 5,543.53 lakhs] (including Rs. 11.77 lakhs (March 31, 2022. Rs. 4,361.60 lakhs) disclesed under ather non-current assets) lying with
Customers/ Vendors/ Government Authorities in term of agreement/orders.

15.3 Balances with banks in current account includes Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs. 3.65 lakhs) in respect of Interest Service Reserve Account maintained in terms of agreement with
borrowers as detailed in Note no, 20

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars
Refer Note No.
(a) Earnest Money/ Security Depoils to Vendors
Considered good
Cansidered Doubtful
Less: Impairment Allowance for doubrtful deposits 16.1
(b} Derivative Assets at fair value through profit and loss
(c) Interest receivable
(d) Expart incentive recelvables
(e) [ 1ce Claim Receivabl
16.1 Movement of impairment Allowances for doubtful Debts and Deposits
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Recognised during the year
Reversal during the year
Balance at the end of the year
16.2 Refer Note no. 43 In respect of charge created against borrowings
17 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
S Asat
TR Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
(a) Balance with Government Authorit/es
Considered good 7.3 3,283.75
Considered doubtful 340.28
Less: Impairment Allowance for doubtful balances 171 (340.28]
(o)  Advances for suppiy of goods and services 174
Considered good 218,364.74
Considered doubtful 89567
Less: Impairment Allowance for doubtful balances 171 (895.67)
() Prepaid Expenses 2,269.62
{d) Advances against salaries 6.31
(=) MEIS Licences 148.29
1] Others- GST Clearing accounts 308.65
#

Sensitwity: Confidential (C2}




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

13

|Rs. in lakhs)
17,1 Movement of Impairmert Allowances for doustful 9aiancas;
As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
dalanca 3! the beginning of the year 1.864.09
Recognised during tha year .
Reversal during tre yaa- 1618,131
Baiance 31 the end of the year 1,235.95

17.2 includes amount paud to related parties against Brand Faes far the financial year 2023-2024 (Refe: Nate no 18)
17.3 includes

a| Rs, 1.288.43 akhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1,238.43 lakhs| related to Input Tax Credit on burnout based on the arder of Hor'ble Supreme Court of India;

b} Rs. 525.57 lakhs (March 31, 2022: 3s. 525.57 Iakhs) lying as deposit pa'd under protast against various judicial authorities in terms of the respective Orders, and

c} Rs. 3,516.22 akhs (March 31, 2022: NIL) being differential amount of electricity duty charged against which a writ petition has been filed at Hon'ble High Caurt of Jharkhand
stating that smendment made pursuant tg Jharkhand Zlectr city Duty (Amendment) Act, 2021, for enhancing the duty are ultra vires the provision of Binar Electricity Duty Act,
1528

17.4 Includes Rs. 13,513 58 lakhs (Varch 31, 2022: Rs. 5,319.86 Jakhs) lying with vendars under cash and carry arrangement 3gainst supply of imported caal aver the specified
periad of time, ?

17.5 Refer Note no. 43 in respact of charge created against borrowings

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars Asat
March 31, 2022
(3] Autharised;
10.02,20,00.000 =quity Sharas of Rs. 10/- each [March 31, 2022: 10,02,C0,00.000 Equity Shares) 10,02,000.00
10,02,000.00
ILH Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up:
1.84,50.30,224 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (March 31, 2022 1,24.90,20,224 Zquity Shares) 1,84,803.02
1,84,903.02
18.1 Reconciliation of the number of Squity Shares Outstanding:
Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022
No, of sharas as at the beginning 1,84,90,30,224
Changas during the year -
No. of shares as at the end 1,83,50,30,224
18.2 Shareholders holgding more than 5% Shares Equity Shares:
As at March 31, 2023 1l As at March 31, 2022
Name of Shareholder Nos % holding ] Nos % holdin,
Vedanta Limited 1,76,55,53.040 95.49% 1,76,55,53.040 55.495%)

18.3 The Company has ane class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-. Each Holder of Equity Shares is entitled “o one vote per shara_In the event

of liquidation of the Company, the equity sharehalders will be =ntitlad to receive assets of the Company remaining after distribution of al| preferential amounts, in pragartion
of their shareholding.

OTHER EQUITY
Particulars -
March 31, 2022
{a]  Capital Reserve 191
< As per last Ba ance Sheet 9,59,908.68
(b) Capital Reserve on Amalgamation 19.1
As per last Balance Sheet (1,74,593.58)
{c) Securities Premium 192
As per |35t Balance Sheet 1,79,036.44
{d) Retained Earnings 93
As per last Balance Sheet (5,26,821.17)
Profit/lLoss| for the Year \ (9,459.19)
Transfer from Cther Comprehensive income (201.37)
- ke (5,36,481.73)
{e}  Other Comprehensive Income B QYN 19.4
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan : )
As per last Balance Sheet -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year \ (20137
Transfer ro Retained Earmings 20137
4,27,869.81
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[Rs. in lakhs)
19.1 Capital Reserve

A) Capital Reserve includes

a} Rs, 9,51,219.97 lakhs recognised on Consalidation and Reduction of Equity Share Capital of the Company on Jun 14, 2018 in terms of Hon'ble NCLT Orde- dated April
17,2018,

b) Further on amalgamation of erstwhile VSL with the company with effect from October 01, 2018:
i| Differential of As. 519.85 lakhs arising on cancellation of equity shares acquired by erstwhile V5L pursuant to 'Exit Offer’ with respect to face value theraof and
ii|Differential of As. 1,831.14 lakhs with respect to the cost of investment in the books of VSL and face value theraof were adjusted to Capital Reserve,

B) Capital Reserve on Amalgamation represents the excess of cansideration paid i.e. equity shares 'ssued with respect to net assets and reserves acquired consequent to
amalgamation of erstwhile V5L with the company
19.2 Securities Premium

Securities Premium reoresents the amount received In excess of par value of sacurities and is available for utilisation as specified under Section 52 of Companies Act,
1013. N

19.3 Retained Earnings

Retainad earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings/losses of the company. This includes Other Comprehansive hﬂ:c'me of (Rs. 722.92 lakhs) (March
31, 2022: (Rs. 447.11 lakhs)) refating to remeasurement of defined benefit pians (net of tax) which cannot be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

13.4 Other Comprehensive income
This includes gain/losses on defined benefit obligations which is transferred to retalned earnings as stated in Note 19.3 above.

BORROWINGS
As at
Particul
e Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
Secured Borrowings
(a) From Banks:
- Term Loan 20.1,20.2, and 20.3 2,70,484.11
2,70,484.11
Unsecured Borrowings
{a) Inter-Corporate Daposits from Hoiding Company 20.2 and 20.3 15,760.00
15,760.00
Less: Oisclosed under Current Maturity of Long Term Debt- Unsicured 22 (2,521.60)
Less: Disclosed under Current Maturity of Long Term Debt- Secured 22 43,520.00)
2,40,202.51
== a———————
20.1 Security
Term Loan from banks is secured by;

a) First ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all fixed assets of the Borrower, including the bank accounts and the bank balances earmarked against
the Interest Service Reserve Account and amounts fying therain;

b} First ranking pari passu charge by deed of Hypothecation on November 28, 2018 and October 08, 2021 in favour of Vistra TCL (India) Limited, security trustees by
way of deposit of 1,5393.35 acres and 264,45 acres respectively of title deed of mortgageable lands

) Corporate Guarantee, in favour of the Security Trustee for the pensfit of the Lenders in farm and substance satisfactory to the Security Trustee. These shall be
collectively referred to as the "Security™; and

d) Negative Pledge over shares of the company ie. post merger, Guarantor (M/s Vedanta Ltd.) to nold 76% of the shares of the company and Non Disposal
Undertaking of these shares in favour of the Security Trustee acting for the Lenders.

20,2  The intarest rate for the above loans ranges from 8.30% to 9.85%.

203  Repayment terms:
Year

2023-2024
2024-2025
2025-2026
2026-2027
2027-2028
2028-2029

20.4 The amount disclosed herein above represents the amortised cost in accordance with Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments®.

-~ -
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(R in lakns)

21 PROVISIONS

S Refer Nota No.

[3) Provision for Employee Senefits 321 524.02

.b) Pravision fcr Comp.iance Cos: lor EC 21.1 22,030.57

lc) Prawvision fc- Site Rectarstian for Vires 212 106.99
22,661.58

211 Provision for complianze cost for EC rearesents cost to be incurred being estimated cost of compensaton etc,, for forest area diversion, wild life development ard

green bel: conservation and other concerns rased on public vearing “or grantng 3C based an the eport of EIA consuitant apsomied in terms af TOR as detailed in
Nate no. 44,

()
b
(A

Provision for site rastoration for rmuncs relates wo compensatory afforestotion, mine elosure and rehabilitation obliganans, These amounts havs b:;m camputed based
an the Miring Plan submi“ted 13 “he authority and wi'l be incurred on closure of the mines aver a period of 1 10 5 years. During the year, the compary has re-assessad
the zost tz b2 incurred for Final Mine Clasure 'an in terms of the Mining Regulation based on evaluation carried out by an Indesendent Professional and additional
provision of Rs. 164.23 'akhs being the oresent value of such cost to de incurred over the pe-iod specified as above has been keot in the accounts.

213 Movement ol the Provisions are as follows

Provision for Compliance Cost far EC Provision for Site Restoration for Mines

Particulars Asat Asat Asat As at

31, ch 31, 202 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 7 21,350,395 st -
Recognised duning the year 679.62 10699
Firarce cost Jnwinding -
‘Written back/paid during rhe year -
Balance at the end of the year 106.99

12 BORROWINGS

Particulars
Refer Note No.
|b) Current maturities of long-term debts- Unsecured 20 2,521.60
icl Current maturitizs of long-term debts- Secured 20 4 43,520.00
i 16,041.60

12,1 The zampany has avaled borrowings (both fund and non-fund based) from banks as detailed in Nate no. 43 on the basis of security of current assets The quarterly
return of statements of current assets filed in this respect are in agreement with the books of accounts.
222 Alsarefer Note no. 43 in respect of security against working capital facilizies

23 TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars -
Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
Payaole for goods ard services
Due 1o Micro anu Small Enterprises 231 10,028.51
Others 21,050.28
31,078.79

23 1 Disclosure of Trade payables as required under section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development [MSMED] Act, 2006, based on the confi-mation and
informatian available with the company regarding the status of suppliers.

Particulars Asat
March 34, 2022
a) Principal amount remaining unpaid but not due as at year end 10,028.51

b} Interest amount remaming unpaid but not due as at year end
¢) Interest paid by the Company n terms of Section 16 of Micre, Small and Medium Enlergrises Development Act, 2006,
along with the amount of the payment made to the suppiler beyond the appainted day during the yes:

d] Interest due and payable ‘or the penod of delay in making payment (which have been said but beyord the apponted day

during the year) but withour adcing the interest specified ander Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmant Act,
2006

&) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end

f] Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeecing years, until such date when tne interest dues as above
are actually paid to the srall enterprise

sensitvity; Confidenta. [C2]
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5

26

{Rs. in lakhs)
23.2 Trade Payable ageing schedule based on the outstanding based on the period from date of transaction are as fallows:
As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
Undisputed - Non MSME
Less than 1 year 15,450.02
1-2 years 1,525.63
2-3 years 5765
Mare than 3 years .
21.033.30
Undisputed - MSME
Less than 1 year 10,028.51
1-2years .
1-3 years
More than 3 years

Disputed - Non MSME
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
-3 years
Mare than 3 years

23.3 Unbilled amount included above being less than 1 year are as follows:
Particulars

Undisputed - Non MSME
Disputed - Non MSME
Undisputed - MSME

OTHER FINANCIAL LABILITIES
. As at
P 1
R Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
{al Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0 1,960.65
|b) Earnest Money Deposit 21691
(c) Capital Vendaors 397775
{d) Derivative Instrument Liability at fair value through profit and loss (net} 4aa(d)(in) -
(e] Others Payables
- Employees payable 2,074.45
- Others 117.90
8,347.66
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
- - Refer Nate No.
(al Advance from customers 251

b} Statutory Dues Payables g
(includes Royalty on iron Ore mines, Provident Fund, GST, Tax deducted at source etc.) 3839522

_a-==-__
25.1 Includes Interest bearing advance of Rs, 10,216.16 lakhs (March 31, 2022: NIL) received from holding company in terms of Agreement far Sale of Iron Ore to be adjusted
against shipment made thereagainst or on expiration of the contract along with interest at SBI 1Y MCLR+0.20 calculated an the outstanding balance.

PROVISIONS
& As at
rticul,
P, Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
Pravision for Employee Benefits 321 116.03
Other Provisions 261 953.83

SRS S50 9.86
26.1 Cther Provisions represent amount provided in respect of defined contribution for employee benefit including for contractual workmen pursuant to the Order of Hon'ble
Supreme Court being na longer required and written back during the year. Movement of such Provisions are as follows:

\ Asat
Particulars Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
Bafance at the beginning of the year 63593
Recognised during the year * 31790
Written back during the year
Balance at the end of the year 953.83
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2 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars
Refer Note No.

Sale of Products:
Finished and Semi-Finised Products;
- Export Sales

- Domestic Sales

27.1 Disclosure as per Ind AS 115:
Disaggregate Revenue
The break up with respect to type of revanue stream of the Company are as follows:

Particulars

Within India
- Billets
- TMT bars
- Wire rods
- D pipes
- PIG Iron
- Iron Ore

QOutside India
- Billets
- TMIT bars
- Wire rods
- Dl pipes
- PiG fron

28 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Particulars

Scrap/ By-products and Others
Incentive on Exports

29 CTHER INCOME

Partict For the Year ended
March 31, 2022

(3] Interest income on Fixed deposits, Security Deposits, overdue debts etc. measured at amortised
cost _ 6, 24569
(b]  lnterestincome on financial assets measured at amortised cost 17
{e  Sundry Credit balances/Provision no longer required written back 5,820.26
(6]  NetGain on foreign exchange fluctuanon 17671
(e}  Met gain on Derivative Instruments on fair valuation through profit and loss 20026
{e)  NetGain on Current Investments at Fair Value through profit and loss 61692
(A Miscellaneous Income 279432

29.1 indudes provision created against old debit balances of certain suppliers/service providers/ Trade Receivables being na longer recovarable have been written off with
corresponding provision made in eariler year thereagainst being written back.

30 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Partculars For tha Year ended For the Year ended
MeferNote No. __ March31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(al  Raw material and other matertals consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 33153654
Add: Purchases and other related costs 4,83,360.56
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 51&9_7

30.1 4,59,354.53

\
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31

32

321

{Rs. in lakhs)
30.1 3azed on the phyzical verification of Inventories carried out by an Ind 3 fesnonals snd on raconciliation with book s$tock, the variativg Umieul
{increase/|Decrease]) have been adjusted to the Cost of Material consumed, Changes in Invemoriu of Finished/ Semi-Finished Goods and 5tock-in-Trade. This also includes
adjustments arising on heap clearences of material;

For the Year ended
Particulars Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
Cost of Material consumed
Increase/|Decrease] in Stock of Raw Material (2,279.31)
Changes in Inventories of Finished/ Semi-Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade
Increasef|Dacreasa) In Stock of Finished Goods (6.83)
Increasef|Decrease) in Stock of Semi-Finished Goods +
Increase/|Decrease] in Stock of Serap/ By-products j422.92)

(2,709.06)

S S e—
30.2 Cost of material consumed represents procurement from external sources and cost incurred for own ggnuamnfralﬁng “etc. remain Included under respective head of
accounts.

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED/ SEMI-FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

For the Year ended
I Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
(i Inventories at the end of the year
(@l  Finished Goods 2,798 62
(b}  Semi-Finished Goods 30,577.35
(e} Scrap / By-products 6,849.50
S
[ii)  Inventories at the beginning of the year
{a)  Finished Guods 4, /bb.Ub
{4} Semi-Finished Goods 6,630.96
(e}  Scrap/ By-products 3.828.36
w'
311 {25,000.09)
31.1 Also Refer Note no. 30.1 for adjustments carried out on reconciliation of physical stock with book stock,
31.2 Disclosures as required under Ind A5 2 "Inventories" are as loliows:
For the Year ended
March 31, 2022
Inventories recognised as expense 5,43,743.19
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
" For the Year ended
Bhisiestions Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
(a)  Salaries and wages 14,343.09
[b)  Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 321 937.76
(e}  Staff welfare expenses 377.83
16,158.68

POST RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The disclosures required under ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits”, are given below: .

(1} Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contributions to Provident Fund, Superannuation and Penslon Schema for eligible employees. Under the schames, the Company is required to cantribute a
spenﬁed pﬂmnhgeﬁnd amount of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the respective fund set up by the government

ib towards provident funds are recognised as an expense for the year. Bath the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Funds at
spedﬁad percentage of the employee's salary and aggregate contributions along with interast thereon are paid to the employees/noininees at retin death or cessation of
employment.

Contributions to Defined Contribution Plans, recognized for the year are as under:

For the Yaar ended
Particulars March 31, 2022
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 41382
Employer's Contribution to Pension Scheme 216.85
Employer's Contribution to Superannuation Schame 104.66
Employer's Contribution to National Pension Scheme 2162
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(Rs.in lakhs)
{1} Post Fmplnyment Nefined Benefit Plans:

The Past Employment defined benefit scheme ace managed by TATA AIA 15 3 defined banefit plan. The present ualue of obligation is determined based on indepencent actuaria

valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recagnizes eacn period of service as giving rise to additional unit of empiovee benefit entitiement and measures each unit ;
separately ta build up the final obligation. Detalls of such fund are as follows:

Gratuity (Funded)

The Company’s gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan is as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, covers the eligible employees and is admi
trusts. Such gratuity funds, whose investments are managed by an insurer, make p

&d INrOugh certain gratuity fund
¥ to vested employ or their upen retirement, death, incapacitation or
cessation of empioyment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The
amount of gratuity payable is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately far 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

{11} The following tables set forch the particulars in respect of aforesaid Defined Benefit plans of the Company far the year ended March 31, 2023 and corresponding figures for the |
previous year:

la]  Change in the presant value of the defined benefit obligation:

Liability at the beginning of the year

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Benefits paid

Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptians
Res - Due to Exp 2 AdjL

Liability at the end of the year

{b]  Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Asset

Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year

Expected return on Plan Assets

Contributions by the Company

Benefits paid

Remeasurements - Return on Assets (Excluding Intersst Income)
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

el Amount recognised in Balance Sheet

Uability at the end of the year
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

(d}  Components of Defined Banefit Cost

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected return on plan assets

Total Defined benefit recognised in Statement of Profit & Lass Account

() nts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Aemeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions
Remeasurements - Due to Expenence Adjustments

. Remeasurements- Return on Assets
Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive income
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U]

(sl

L]

Balance Shect Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability

Defined Banefiz Cost included in Stazement of Profit and Lass Account

flemeasurements recogmised in OCI
Employers Contribution

Benefit Paid Directly by Entarprise
Amaunt recognised in 3alance Sheet

Parcentage allocation of plan assets in

Fund managed by insurer

The Principal actuarial assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date are set out as below:

b y of Fi ial A
Oiscoun: Rate

Future Salary Increase
Salary Escalation- After Five Yea-s
Expected Return or Plan Assets

Summary of Demographic Assumptions

Murtality Rate [as % of 1ALM (2012-14) (Mod | Ule. Mortality Table]
Disability Table (as % of above mortality rate}

Withdrawal Rate

Retirement Age

Average Future Seryice

Weighted Average Duration

(Rs, in lakhs}

As at

7.14%
6.00%
5.00%
7.14%

100.00%

5.00%
1% to B%
60/38 Years
2194
1347

Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars in Grawiry Gratuity
Assumption AN Ny

March31.2023 | March31.2022 |

Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations:

Salary Escalation +2.50% 101.38 70.22

Salary Escalation [0.50%) (34,13} (65.38)

Discount Rates +0.50% {94 22) (64.41)

Discount Rates (0.50%) 10247 69.79

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumption constant Inpractice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumption may be co-related. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obiigations 1o significant actuarial assumptions the same method (projected unit
credit method) has been apolied as when calculating the defined benefit obligations recognised in the palance sheet. The methods and type of assumption used in
preparing the sensitiv'ty analysis did not change compared to the prior peried.

Estimate of expected benefit payments (in absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)

As ax
Particulars March 11, 2022
Yearl 115.80
Year 2 49.27
Year3 49,22
Year 4 6134
Year 5 63.93
Remaining Subsequent Years 101104
Other Long Term Employee benefits
Compensated Absences

The obligation for compensated absences is recognised in the same manner as gratuity except remeasurement benefit which is treated as part of other corpprenensive
income, The actuarial liability of Compensated Absences [unfunded) of accumulated privileged and stk ;eaves of the emplovees of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022 are given below,

As at

March 31, 2022

Privileged Leave 509.98
Sick Laave 2798
Average numker of people employed " 1726
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Risk analysis

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefit plans and,

management's estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows: 4
Investmant risk !
The Gratulty plan is funded with Tata AIA Umited and the company does not have any libarty to manage the fund provided to them. The present value of the defined

benefit pian lability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to Government of India bonds. |f the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a
plan deficit.

Interest risk

A decrease In the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability. J
Longevity risk / Life expectancy |
The present value of the defined benefit plan llability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the |
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increasa the plan liability

Salary growth risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants, An increase in the salary of the plan particlpants

will increase the plan liability.

3 FINANCE COSTS

For the Year endad
Particulars Refer Note No, March 31, 2022
(a)  Interest Expense on financial liabilities not measured at FVTPL 32,347.84
[b)  Dther Borrowing Cost (i.e. LC charges, Suppliers Credit, Guarantee Comission etc.) 1474.18
(e}  Less: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress 331 -
33,822.02

- —_——=——————
isation rate of 3.56% to the

33.1  During the year, the company has capitalised general funds borrowed and used for the purpose of obtaining 2 qualifying assat
expenditures on the said asset as required in terms of Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs™,

34 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Particulars

{a)  Depreciation on Tangible Assets
[b)  Amortisation of Intangible Assets

a5 OTHER EXPENSES

2 For the Year ended
s Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
fa)  Consumption of Stores and Spares 7332558
(6] Powerand Fuel 32,745.91
{c]  Freight and Forwarding Charges 20,546.37
(dl  Rent 80.56
el  Rates and taxes 520.15
(l  Insurance 1,592.32
(g)  Repairs to Plant and Machinery 4,758.00
(h)  Repairs to Building & others 294.24
(il Operation and Processing expenses 17,198.15
(ki Machine Hire Charges ! 577.08
n Royalty, Bid Premium & other mines fees 351 20,402.18
{m) @rand Fees 352 9,488.60
(n})  Material Handling Expanses 144133
(o)  Lsting and Registrar Expenses 4523
{p)  Security Expenses 1,685.88
{gh  Advertisement and Business Promotion Eapen'us 5820
[r]  Travelling & Conveyance 1,262.95
s}  Legal & Professional Fees 3,485.02
It) Payment to Auditors 353 66.47
vk~ Net {gain)/loss on foreign exchange fluctuation -
{w]  Net{gain)/loss on Derivative Instruments on fair valuation through profit and loss -
fyl  Loss on Sale/Discard of Fixed Assets (Net) 260.20
{t)  Selling and Distribution Expenses 189.29
[aa) Packing Materials consumed and packing charges 191338 B
{ab) Impairment Allowance for Doubtful Debt and Deposits 65.30
(ac) Provision bor Obsolete and Non-moving Stores and Spares 76.34
|ad) Sundry Balances written-off 51073

{#e) Sitting Fees to Directors
(aff  Other Miscellaneous Expenses

Sensitivity: Confidentlal (C2)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

w1

35.2

353

37

[Rs. in |akhs)
Royalty. Bid Premium % athar mines-fees includes 32 63,721 72 Izkhz (March 31, 2022 R:. 20,402.12 lsins) provided 2n srovisional pasis hased an last notified Iron Ora pi'oas
pending publicaticn of such prizes by 1BV

The company in terms of the Brand Lizence dgraement dated September 24, 2019 read with sddendum dated May 33, 2072 with Vedanta Resources Limited has agraed to pay
1.3% of the Turmover as “3rand Fee", In accardance with the 3ald agreement. the company has paid advance of Rs. 15.545.31 lakhs !March 31, 2022: Rs. 75,1237 [akhs) against
which As. 10.501.12 lakhs [March 31, 2322: 85, 3,488.50 lakhs] has Seen recognised a5 expense. The balanze 3mount will be adjusted against in subsequert year

Payment to Auditors
For the Year anded
Particulars March 31, 2022
(3}  Statutory Budit Fas 30.00
(B)  Tax Audit Fee 4.00
(z]  Certification etc. 3168
() Out of Packet Expenses 0.79
66.47

EXCEPTIONAL TEMS

s For the Year ended
Particul
IR Refer Note No. March 31, 2022
Pravision against Compliance Cast for Environmental Clearance 36.1{a) (594.43|
Provision against Capital work in progress 36.1{b| {4,587.67)
Adjustment pertaining to land 36.1(c) £ F |565.51)
=y cosbperl e |5.847.67)
— 4
36.1 Except onal Item relates to

3| Provision of Rs. 694.49 lakhs creared 3ased on the order concerning Site-Specific Wild Conservation Plan raceivad from the Regianal Chief Conservalor of Forest relatirg
to environmental clearance in connection with issue of CT0.

b} Adjustment of Rs. 4,587.67 |akhs pertairing to discrepancies ascertained on zompletion of physical var fication of project equipment and material carried forward under
Capital Weork in Pragress,

©) Rs. 565.51 lakhs writtan off being the cost of 102.43 acres of land located outside the plant for which details of original owners/sellers etc., are not available and the
physical possession or the ownership of the same as such cannot be obtained.

COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Particiilans For the Year ended
Refer Note No. March 31, 2022

items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 371 (309.54)
E!.Sﬂ!

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the Ind AS 24 on "Related Party Disclosures’ are as follows:
Names of the related parties and description of relationships:

A Company Relationship
Volzan Investment Limiteo (VIL] Uitimate Holding Company
Vedanta Limited (VL] Holding Company
B Key Management personnel Designation
Prasun Xumar Mukherjes Director
Mahendra Singh Mehta Director
Poovannan Sumathi Director
Thomas Mathew Thumpeparamiil Director [Appointment w.e.f. June 15, 2022)
Navnath Laxman Vharte Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer (Resigned w.e.f. September 30, 7022)
Mahesh Iyer Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f. April 30, 2022)
&nand Prakash Dubey Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w. a.f, May 01, 2022)
Ashish Gupta Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer [Appointed w.e.f, Octaber 01, 2022)
c Entities where KMP or thelr close member have significant influence or control or Group Enterprises or C les under ¢ control

" Bharat Aluminium Comparny Limited |BACL)
Sterlite Power Transmission limited (SPTL)
Wizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited (VGCBPL)
Maritime Ventures Private Limited (MVPL)
Vedanta Resources Limited (VRL)
Talwandi 5abo Power Limited (TSPL)
Hindustan Zinc Limited (HZL)
Janhir Electoral Trust [JET)
Ferro Alloy Corporation Limited [FACL)
MALCD Energy Limited {Earlier Vecanta Aluminium Limited) (MEL)
Sterlice Technolegies Limited (5T
Minova Runaya Privatz Limited (MRPL)
Runaya Refining LLP |Runaya)
5Sesa Mining Corparation Limitea [SMCL)
Ses3 Resources Limited (SAL)

¢
w2t INGIL VA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Rs.in [akhs}
o] Related party transaction:
Nature of Transaction Holding Company- VL
2022-23 1 2021-22 ¢
Recovery of Expenses 18733 98.06
Purchase of Materials 21,497.06 56,839 86
Purchase of Assets 273.04 26.17
|Interest Expenses 2,758.33 1,499 29
Interest Income . 4,743.37
|Guarantee Comission 850.16 919.01
Corporate Cost Allocation and Reimbursement 4,360.80 3,703.76
Advance raceived against Sale of Materials 12,500.00 |
Sale of Materials 2,258.97 .
Sale of Assets 8.10
Closing balance as at March 31
Inter Corporate Deposit Payable 13,2340 . 15,760.00
Trade Payables 1248022 -
Reimb t of Exp Payable + 805.43
Advance from Customer 10,216.16 .
Guarantee Comission payaole .
Corporate Guarartee issued on cur behalf and cutstanding as at the end of the year 1,28,480.00 1,72,000.00
Interest Payable 2BE.03
Key Management Personnel Entities where KMP or their dose member have
significant influence or control and Companies
Nature of Transaction under Common control or Group Enterprises
2022-23 2021-22 022-83 2021-22
Sale of goods
SPTL - - 2,672.10 3,239.04
MRPL . - 71303 2.962.74
STL . - - 10.82
FACL . . 386.34 ! |
Sale of assets |
FACL - - 139 - |
Purchase of assets
HZL . - ] .53
BACL . - 12,51 . -
FacL - . 133 .
SMCL . - 10.6% -
SRL . . 0.63 .
Recovery of Expenses
\FACL 2 - 30.18 0.50
IHZL - - 6.96 36.10
BACL - . 6.92 33.27
MEL - - 4788
TSPL . - 448
Reimbursement of Expenses
BACL - - 212 6.63
FACL . s = .25
HZL - - 5.68 in
VGCBPL - - 0.32 4.34
MEL - - 57.40 -
TSPL - - 9.5 -
Purchase of Materials/Services Received
VGCBPL - - 175.79 146,93
FACL - - 581.53 669.09
MEL . . 5.253.16 3,229.35
MVPL . . 1,393.8% 645.67
Runaya - - 10.00 -
Brand Fees v
VRL - - 10,501.12 9,488.60
Interest Received
SPTL . - 5414 58.35
|Purchase of Scripts/Licences
VGCBPL . . 127 67
HZL - . 8470
BACL | - 112.20

s
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)

'Nature of Transaction

Key Management Personnel

Entities where KMP or their close member have
significant influence or control and Companies

under C control or Group Enterprises

2021-22

2022-23 202122

|Remuneration

|Pankaj Malhan

Nahesh lyer

Anand Prakash Dubey

Navnath Laxman Vhate

Ashish Gupta

Director sitting fees and comission
Prasun Kumar Mukherjee
Mahendra Singh Mehta

Thomas Mathew Thumpeparambil

- 17.43
B2.53

142.48

27.25
27.00

Closing balance as at March 31

Remuneration Payahle
Mahesh lyer

Navnath Laxman Vhatte
Director Comission Payable
Prasun Kumar Mudherjee
Mahenara Singh Mehta
Thomas Mathew Thumpeparambil
Trade Payahle

FACL

VGTBPL

MVPL

BACL

VRL

\Advances Given

VAL

Trade Receivable

HZL

VGCEPL

MRPL

SPTL

MEL

1346 3.90
13.95 3.90
1013 -

50.29 154 82

. e
756.53 177.85
0.98

5,967.70 &

0.30 -
3.96 -

. 47435

12.55 298.07

45.92 261,34

E  Comp ion of Key |

thie year wis 35 follows:

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

The remuneration of directors and other I ofgi"lwutpmd

Year ended March
31, 2022

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits

346.27 22489
70.47 13.63
23.94 5.07

Notes:

L. The abave related party information is as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditor
2. In respact of above parties, there is no provision for doubtful debts as on March 31, 2023 and no amount has been writtan back or written off during the year in respect

of debts due from/ to them

3. Post-Employee benefits and other (ong term emplayee benefits have been disciosed made on retirement/resignation of services but does not include provision made on
acturial basls as the same is available for all the employees together

4. Terms and conditions of ransactions with related parties

All transactions are from related parties are made In erdinary course of business. Fer the year ended March 31 2023, the Company has not recorded any impairment of

TECR|

the market in which the related party operates.

Sensitivity. Confidential 1C2)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[®s. in lakhs)
39 DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS 116
i) Follpwirg are tae changes in the carrying value of right of use 2ssets for the year ended March 31, 2022:
Particulars Land Buildings Equipment Vehicle Total
M March 31, 2021 ) 35 1_!5.09 112.43 382.05 17.21 35,657 78
|Addition 1.050.48 230.58 31132 153255 3,124.93 |
Delation - > . 3 .
Acj (LT7357) {10.101 {653 (1.901 {1,792.10]
Depraciation 11,183.34) (93.50) {175.08) {266.07) {1.723359)
|As at March 31, 2022 33,273.66 39.41 511786 128179 35,306.62
addition 4952.34 128.06 630.82 295,08 5.005.30
Deletion - {2.09) - - [{2.09)
Adjustments 5 - (14.56) 2771 213.05
Depreciation [1,241.50) (11254 {268.07)] |688.54 (2,311.85)]
As at March 31, 2023 36,984.10 252.44 859.85 || 1,116.04 39,212.43
i) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:
Particulars As a3t
March 31, 2022

1]

i)

vl

i)

Current lease liabilities

21,942.50
Non-current lease liabilities

1,526.84
Tatal 23,469.34
The fallowing is the movement in lease liabilities:
Particulars As at
March 31, 2022
Opening 18,553.79
Additions 117453
Finance cost accrued during the period 146.91
Adjustments against assets [1,792.10)
Deletions 74162
Payment of lease liabilities |7.164.89}
Payment of interest on lease liabilities 146.91)
Closing 13,469.34
The table below provides details ragarding the contractual maturities of lesse liabilities on an undiscounted basis
As al As at
Pasticuiar March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Not later than one year 17,834.55 21,750.17
Later than one year and not more than five years 1,596.62 1,685.55
Later than five years . =

Alsa refer Note no. 5.3 regarding lease liability being recognised pending execution of lease deed and Nate no. 44 dealing with Environmental Clearence and approval for
afforestation fand.

Further to above, the Company has certain operating lease arrangements for office, transit houses, furnitures and fixtures etc, for short-term leases. Expenditure incurred

on account of rental payments under such leases during the year and recognized in the Profit and Loss accaunt amounts to Rs. 128.00 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. BOS6
lakhs}.

40 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR}):

A)

a)

d

_ Iron Ore Mines as dealt with in (8) below

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Asat
; March 31, 2022
Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Company 2020

Electricity Duty charged pursuant to Jharkhand Electricity Duty (Amendment) Act, 2021
pemand raised in terms of Mine Development and Froduction Agreemants (MDPA) entered with State Government for i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

a

{Rs. in lakhs)

8)  The Company has been granted Nadidih iron Ore and Manganese Block with Lease Area of 117.21 Hectares and Nadidihi Iron ore Block with Lease Area of 74,50 Hectares in
Odisha on November 20, 2021. The Mine Develop and P ion Ag [MDPA) entered into by the Company with respect to the above two Iron Ore Block
obligates certain minimum desparch requiremant for each year of the operations,

The Company has received demand notices dated December 02, 2022 aggregating Rs. 1.70,780.81 lakhs and dated April 11, 2023 aggregating to Rs, 4,345 40 |akhs towards
penaity far shortfall in minimum despatch for the first year of the lezse ie. upto November 18, 2022 and for subsequent guarter thereof from November 20, 2022 upto
February 19, 2023 *espectively for both the mines . Management believes that the demands for shortfall as made against the company in respect of period upto November
18, 2022 are not valid as per the provisions of law and MDPA on various grounds including the fact that the base period taken in term of MDPA for calculation of the
shortfall has erronecusly been considered by the State Government. Further, the Company was unable to carry out mining operation for significant part of the first vear
owing L0 reasons beyond its control and for the said period is entitied for an extended perlod for mining in terms of provisions of Mines and Minerals {Developmant and
Regulation} Act’ 1957 (MMDR). In respect of peiod from November 20, 2022 upto period ended February 19, 2023 the amount of demand is provisional and based on
future projection the company will be able to meet it's obligation for minimum disptach quantity cumulatively on annual basls Based on a legal opinion obta ned in respect
of first year of commercial operations, the Company has filed a Revision Appll ) befare Revisional Authority, Ministry of Mines challenging the said d d against
which the said authority has directed the state government that no coercive actions should be taken to realise the demand till further order. The demand received for
subsequent perlod which as stated above is even though provisional, will also not be tenable on similar ground. Pending final decision on the matter, in viaw of the
management as advised legally no liability requiring any provision on account of shortfall as per the said demand as such is expected to arise.
Notes:

In view of the management supported by legal opinion and various judicial proncuncements, the contention of the claimants in respect of statutory liability prior to fune D4, 2018
are not tenable 35 per the Resolution Plan approved by Hon'ble NCLT and no outflow of fund with respecr to these are expected. The Company's other pending [itigations
comprises of claims against the company and proceedings pending with Statutary/ Government Authorities, The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings
and has made adequate provisions, and disclosed contingent lfabilities, where applicable, in its financial statements and does not expect any cash outflow in this respect.

o] CAPTTAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
fal  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances)
and not previded for 1,05423.66
In Farelgn Currency
(b} Forward Contract Outstanding
In USD 8,56,96,940
In EURD -
In EURO/USD 146,818
Segment information

(a) Description of segments and princigal activities

The Company |s engaged in the manufacture and supply of Wire rods, TMT bars, Ductlle iron (DI} Pipes and Billets, and also deals in Iran Ore, Pig Iron and iron and steel scrap
products generated while manufacturing these products or otherwise in connection therewith, In term of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment”, the Company has one busi
segment i.e. lron and Steel and related products and all other activities revolve around the said business,

(b} Geographical information

The company is domiciled in India, however also sells its products sutside India. The amount of its revenue from external custamers broken down by location of the customers and
each product is shown in the table below.

Particulars Fer the Year|
ended|
R from | March 31, 2022/
In india
- Billets 11,973.66
- TMT bars 2,11,052.37
- Wire rods 2,03474.53
- Dl pipes B3.833.28
- PIG Iron 71,807.59
~lror Ore =
o - Others 170,85
| Dutside India
- Billats 34,166.10
-TMT bars -
- PIG iron 5,687.34
- Dip 39.26
- lron Ore —
- Wire rods 75,180.00
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

a2

a3

a4

a5

|Rs. in [akhs)
Calculation of Earning Per Share 15 as follows:
For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022
3| Net P=ofit! (Lass) far basic and zilutad 2amings per share as per Szatemant of Profit and Loss [9,455.19)
Net Profit/ {Loss) for Basic and Diluted earnings per share (9,459 19)
o) Weighted average number o equity shares for calculation of basic ang diluted earnings per share
(Face value Rs, 1/- per sharg)
Number of aguJity shares 2atstanding as o0 Marzh 31 1,84,90,30,224
Add: Movement in Equity Shares sswed during the per.od -
Number of eguity shares outstanding 1,84,90,30,224
Weightad average numnber of squity shares considered for calculation of basic and diluted earnings
per share " 1,84 90,30,224
g) Earmings per share (EPS) of Equity
Basic EPS (Rs.) (a/d) 10.51)
Diluz=d EPS (Rs.) (a/d) (0.51)

The Comoany has availed various fund and non-fund based working zapital facilities from banks amounting to Rs, 1,45,4C0.00 lakhs secured by First ranking pari passu charge by
deed of Hypothecation axecuted in favour of Vistra ITCL (India) Umitad. security trustees aver the whale of the currant assets of the company both present ane future including
stack of raw materials, stock-in-process, semi-finished goods, finishea goods, stores and spares, Further sacured by all of the book debts, amount ourstanding, monies recaivable,
jnvestmrents, claims and bills of the borrower and Letter of Comfort backed by Boara Rasolution from the Hoiding company.

In respect of company's application for obtaining Environmental Clearance {EC) rom Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change [MoEF), the Forest Advisory Committee
{FAC) of MoEF granted the Stage 1 clearance and approved the relazed Terms of Re‘erence (TOR) on August 25, 2020. The proposal suomitted by ESL after completing the public
consultation even though acceptad by Expert Advisory Committee (EAC) which decided for Issuance of EC subject to environmental safeguards ta be taken by the company had
been rejected by MoEF sighting the reason for pendency of similar matters before certain high courts. The company filed a SLP before Hon'ble Supreme Caurt of India pursuant Lo
which the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India had set aside the order of MoEF and directed MoEF to process the EC Application of ESL as per the applicable law within a period of
three months. MoEF vide its leter dated February 02, 2022 had deferred the grant of EC till Forest Clearance [FC) Stage-ll is granted to the company. The company has so far
pracured substantial portion of land ang the same have either been handed over to forest department ar is in the advance stage of daing so for compensatory afforestation as
required for obtaining Stage- Il clearance. The Company Is in the process of procuring remaining land including certain government (and seading cabinel approvals etz in this
respect, so a5 to ensure all the necessary compliances for sbtaining EC. On receipt of EC, application lor obtaining Consent to Establish [CTE} and tren Consent te Operate (CTO)
will be made by the company. Pending completion of the entire process and determination of aggregare cost, provision of Rs. 18,951.72 Iakhs (net of Rs. 4,600.83 lakhs paid out of

the same) towards cost of land and Rs. 20,556 58 lakhs {including Rs, §34.43 lakhs as given in Note no. 36.1(a)) for other related costs etc. net of Rs. 1,473.99 [akhs paid out of the
same] for compensatory afforestation made in earlier years has been carried in the accounts as on March 31, 2023.

Pending issue of EC by MoEF as given herein above, Hon'ble Supreme Court has directed that operation of steel plant shall not be interfered with on the ground of want of EC, FC,

CTE or T2 Considering this and favourable conclusion of EAC for granting EC and effective steps being taken by the management for obtaining EC and CTO, the accounts of the
company have been prenared on goirg concern basis.

Operationa Buyers’ Credit and Supplie=s' Credit is availed in foreign currency fram oMshore branches of Indian banks or foreign banks at an interest rate ranging from 5 % to 6%
per annum. Further, ather trade credit in rupee denominated currency fram domestic banks 3t interast rate ranging fram 7.00% ta 9.00% per annum = These trade credits are
largely repayable within 180 days from the date of draw down. Operational Buyer's credit availed in fare gn currency is backed by Standby Letter of Credit issued under working
capital facilities sanctioned by domestic banks. Part of these facilities are secured by first pari passu cnarge over the present and future current assets of the Company
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

aR
El

b)

]

(Rs. in fakhs)

FINON{IAL INSTRUMFNTS

The accounting classification of each category of Ainancial instrument, thair carrying amount and fair value are as Follows:-

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 2022
Carrylng Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets [Current and Non-Current)

Fair Value through Profit and Loss Account

Der vative Assets - ot design ated as hadging nstramerts

-Forward Contracis - . 366.88 365.38

Invessmants in Mutual Funds 1,003.39 2,003.39 18,015.91 18,015.91

Financial Assats at amortised cost

Trade recevables 24,862.95 1486295 8,257 82 805782

Cash and 3ank 3alances 3,503.65 3,503.85 4,414.58 441468

Fixed Deposits with bark 24 63350 2463350 6373161 §3,731.51

Other Firancial Assets 2,022.42 2,022.42 3,412.13 141213

Financial Liabilities {Current and Non-Current)

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost .

Borrcwings- Fooat ng Rate 22735195 1,27.351.95 2,70,484.11 27048411

Boriswings: Fixed Rate 13,238.40 13,238.40 15,750.00 15,760.00

Lease Liability 19,002.37 15,002.37 23,469.34 23,465.34

Trade payabies 67,400 84 67,400.84 31,078.79 3107879

Operational 3uyers’ Credit / Suppfiers' Cradit 1,27,774.84 1.27,7T74.84 91,046.22 91,0468.22

Interest an Loans and Barrowings 856.85 B56.85 1.960.85 1,960.65

Others financiat liabllities 11,932.77 11,932.77 6,387.01 5.387.01

Fair Value through Profit and Loss Accounl

Derivative Liabilities - not des'gnated as hedging instruments :

-Farward Contracts 8273 - -

Fair Valuation Technlques

Tha fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would ba rece veo to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability \n an orderly transaction between market

part:cipants at the measurement date

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the lfair values:

linancial statements approximate their fair values,

The Company’s long-term debt has been contracted at floating rates of interest, Fair value of variable interest rate borrowings approximates their carrying value subject 10 adjustments

The Fair value of cash and zash squivalents, current trade receivables and payables, current financial liabilities and assets and borrowlings approximate their carrying amount largely due
o the shor-term nature of these Instruments. The management zonsiders tnat the camrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabitities recognised at nominal cost m the

made for transaction cost |5 raspect of fixed interest rate borrowings, Fair value is determined by using discount -ates that raflects the present borrowing rate of the company

invastment in liguid and short-t2rm mutual funds which are classified 3s fair value througn profit and lass are measured using quoted market prices 3t the reporting date multiptied by

the gquantity hela.

associated with the counterparties and bealleves them ‘o be insignificant and not requiring any cradit adjustments.

Fair value hisrarchy
The fallowing table

fair value hierarchy of assets and iizbilities measured at fair value on a

Particulars

Financial Assets

- Derivarive- not designated as hedging instruments
o Farward Contracts

= Irvestment in Mutual Funds

- Investment in Fixed Deposits

Financial Labilities
= Borrowings- Fluating Rate

- Borrow|ngs- Fixed Rate
- Cperaticnal Buvers’ Credit / Suppliers’ Credit
- Lease Liability

- Cerivative- not designated as hedging :nstruments
o Forward Contracts

basis as of March

31,2023

The fair value of derivative fnancisl instruments is determined based on observable market inputs incluging currency spot and forward rates, yield curves, currency volatility etc. The
said valuation has been =arried out by the counter party with waom the cont-act has been entered with and Management has evaluated the credit and non-performance risks

Fair value measurements at reporting date using

Level 1

Levei 2

Lovel 3

2,003.39
118,015.91)

|366.88]

24,633.50
{63.731.51)

2,27,351.93
{2,70,484.11)
13,238.50
115,760.C0)
12777484
(91,046.22)
19,002.37
|23,455.34)

18279

By

|

Sensitivity: Conf dential 22)




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

L]

i

{Rs. in lakhs)
{*} Figures 'rroaund orazeets | indscate figuras 3z ¥z March 33, 2090

Durrg the yea endes Marzh 31, 2023 3n0 Marzh 31, 2022, there were =2 rrarsfass hetween Level |, Lavel 2 3nd cavel 3

“he Ing Jts used a SQir valialion Tzasurement are as follows:

<Fair valuaton of Financiai aswets and labilities no: within the 322rating ovcle 31 the comoany is amartised 5ased on tha bor-owing rate of the comopary.

Firancial insr-uments are va..ed based ar quated orizes far similar assets and Gabilities in active markets or inguts that are direct'y or indirectly abservable 'n the markeigiace In respact of
dier vatwe financal instruments, the 1puts used ‘ar forward contracts are Forward fo-elgn currency ecchange raes and Interest raves o discoun: future cash flow

Derivatives assets and fiabilitias:
The Company foilaws blishad risk m

t policies, incdluding the use of derwatives to hedge its 2xposare 10 forgn curency fluctuations an fore gn curcenty awants
zountor parsy in these derivative instruments is 2 Sank and the Company considess the riss of non-parfarmance by the counterpary as nan-material.

wabiites T

Iﬂw Forward

0 Wﬂmm are as follows: -
Nature

Trade Payables lircluding acceptances)
Trade Payabies (Including acceptances)
Jaut Reveivalils

m The fureign exchange forward contracts mature within twelve months. The table balow analyses the derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period as of the balance sheet date:

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

[ ==

Paticulars

Mot later than one month

Later than one month and not later than three months
Later than three manths and not later than oag year
Later than one year

Sale of financial assets

In the normal course of business, the Compary translers its bills rece vable 1o banks. Under the terms of the arrang 5, the G surrenders contral over the financal assels and
sransier is without recourse. Accordingly, such transfers ara recorded &5 sale of financial assets. Gaing and losses on sale of financial assets without recaurse are recorded at the tire of sale
based on the carnying value of the financial astets. in cermain cases, transfer of fnancial assets may be with recoursa. Under arrangements with recoursa, the Company is obligatad to

repurchase the uncollested financial assets, subject 13 limits specified in the agreement with the banks. Accordingly, in such zases the amounts received are recorded as 20rrawings in the
statement 31 financial pos tion and cash fiows from “inancing activities.

During the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company trawsferred and recorded as sale of finaacial assets of Rs. 1,20,767.30 lakhs and Rs. 71,177.12 lakhs respactvely, undar

arrangerments without recourse and has included the proceeds from such sale in net cash provided by operating activities. These transfers resulted in loss of Rs. 1,306 90 lakhs and Rs. 787 24
akPt for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 respectively.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities are exposed to a vanely of linancial risks. The key financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's fotus is to forssee the
unpredictability of financial markets and szek to minimize potential adverse effects on its inancial yerfo'mance. The 3oard of Director's and app policies for ging these

risks. The risks are governed by appropriate polices and procedures and that financia. disks are identitied. measurad and managed in aczordance with the Company's palicies and risk
objectives.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the nisk or uncertainty arsing from possible market fluctuation ~esulting in vasiation in the fair value of ‘uture cash Aows of a financial instrument. The major components of

Market risks are cufrency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial nstzuments affected by market risk includes trade receivables, investment n fixed deposts and mutual funds,
borrowings and trace and other payables.

Foreign Currency Risk

Fareign curmency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of ar exposure will fuctuate because of changes in foreign exclunge rates. Toe Company's 2xpasurs 1o the rsk of
changes in foreign exchanga rates relates primarily to the Company's trade and other payables and 1-ade res i

In arder to mitigate farex losses, the company has 3 comprehensive risk ma-gement review system wherein it actively hedges its foreign currency exoosire witk defired parameters through
use of hedging instrument such as forward contracts, The Cerrpany perindically reviews its risk management initiatives and also takes expert advice on regular basis an hedging strategy
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NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[As inlakhs)

Particulars

Trade Rece.vable
Trade 3nd other Fayanle:

{Met assets/Bablities)

[Pacticulars year

PAYABLES (Weakening of INR by 5%)
uso

RECEIVABLES {[Weakening of INR by 5X)
usD

A 5% stregtyening of INR would have an equal and opeosite effect anthe C

Interest Rate Risk

The company exposure in markes risk ~elating to change in interest rare primarily anses fram floating rate sorcowing from thee banks and financial institutions. Consderirg the same the
zarrying amount of sald orowing was considered o be a* fair value.

Further thers are deposits with banks which are for short term period are exposed o nterest rate falling due for I. These deposits are b
such do not cause material ‘mplicaton,

generally for trade purposes and as

With all other variables held c the following table d the impact of the barrowiag cost on foating rate partion of ‘0ans a1d borrowings.

Particulars

Increase in 50 basis points
IBmmrlﬁ-Fbmﬁltt

& detrease in 50 basis point would have an squal and opposite effect on the Company's financial statements
Commaodity price risk

The Company's revenue is #xposed to the market risk of price Mluctuations related o the sale of its steel progucts. Market forces generally determine prices for the steel products sold Sy the
Cempany. These prices may be influencec by factars such as supply and demand, production costs (including the costs of raw material inputs| and global and regional economic conditinns

and grewth, Advesse changes in any of these factors may reduce the revenue that the Comaany earns from the sale of its steel products, The Company is subject to fluctuatiens in pr.ces fo-
the purchase of iron ore, caking coal, ferro allovs. rin, scrap and other raw material inputs.

The Company aims to sell the products at prevailing market prices. Simifarly, the Company pracures key raw materials like iran ore and coal based on prevailing markat rates as the selling
prices of steel prices and the prices of input raw materials move in the same d'rection. Further, 3 to ¢ of mining aperations during the year woply of Iran Ore at the
<nerifisd roct mav ne aszured minimicne tha <ide tn thar setent avd mav ant haus <enificant imnart an the warkine reuiltonf the Famnany

Other price risk

The Company also invests in mutual fund schemes of (rading fund houses. Such investments are suscept ble 1o market price risk that anse mainly from changes in interest rate which may

impact the return and value of such investmerts. However, given the relatively short tenure of under ying portiolio of the mutual fund schemes in which the Company has invested. such
grice nisk is not significant.

(] CREOIT RISK
Cradit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet i obligations under 3 ‘nancial ‘nstrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss, The Company 15 expased to credit r'sk fram
Its operating activities [primarily trade receivables) To ge this, the ag t has a =redit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitared an an angoing basis. The
Campany periodically the financial refiability of c 5, taking Into aczount the financlal condition, current economic trends and ageing of accounts receivable  Individual risk
limits are set accordingly. Further the company obtains necassary security including letter of credits and/for bank guarantee to mitigate its Uld[tridt.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimare of incurred losses In respect of trade and other receivables. Receivables from customers are
reviewed/evaluated periodically by the management and appropriate provisions are made to the extent recovery there against has been considered to be remote.

The catrying amount of respective financial assets recognised in the financial st (net of impai t losses) represents the C 'S e (o credit risk. The

ey P

concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Of the trade receivables balance at the end of the year, there are three customers (March 31,
2021: two) having outstanding of Rs. 15,796.71 lakhs {Marzh 31, 2022: Rs. 4,995 43 lakhs) which accounts for more than 10% of the accaunts recelvabie.

The Company takes collateral or cther credit ennancemerts (o secure the credit risk, The Company has also taken advances, security deposits and Letter of Credit from its customers, which
mitigate the credit nsk to that estent_

Financial assats that are neither past due nor impaired

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks are neither past due nor impaired, Cash and cash equivaients with banks are held with reputed and credit worthy banking institutions,

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Trade rece vables amounting to Rs.10.358.14 lakhs [March 31, 2022: Rs. 3,067 48 'akhs) which are past due at the end of the repcrting periad, no credit losses there against are expected 1o
£
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Rs. in lokhs)
(] UQUIDITY RISK

Liguidity =5k is Jefined as *a2 risc tharthe Comoany will nat b2 sble 2 sattle or rmeet "5 SbLgations an Lime 2r At 3 J=atorabiz pnce, The Tzmpary's oorective 13 1o mantan aptimum leve of
liquidhty Lo meet it's rash ana zollateral requiremants at & limes. “he company relies 21 internal accruals. working capital facilities from banks ard borrowings fram halding somoany o
mzet its fund requirement. Tha o going implermentation measures witl have a pasit v2 zash fiaw and in term hela to control the liquidity cnisis.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following "astes detail the Campany™s ramaining cantractual maturity far its non-de-'vativa fiaanc'al liabilit'es with agreed repaymunt periods, The tables have bean drawn up based on
the undisco Jnted cash Nows of financia! liaaitites based on the eariiest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include Soth interest and arincipal cash fows

intarast rate and cu

NR 2,27,351.95 13,238.40 .33
Total 2,27.351.95 13,238.40
Particulars As at Mm 31,2022
Weighted #
Floating rate Fixed rate average
borrowings borrowings interest Rate
%)
{inr 2,70,484.11 15,763.00 8.58%
{Total 2,70,884.11 15,760.00

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities
As at March 31, 2023

;:::E:.tnic::::r::::::;] 2,40,540.35 23.020.39 23.020.80 1,34,548.75 2,4C,390.35
Interest payable 835,85 - 85585 . - B56.85
Lease Liability 19,002.37 16,431.03 553,72 547 41 145821 19,002.37
Operational Buyers' Cradit ( 5uppliers Credit 1.27,774.34 . 127,7743a . . 1,27,774.84
[Trade and other payables 79,333,561 79,333.61 - . - 79.333.51
As at March 31, 2022
5 Carrying .

Particulars 3 OnDemand |Less than 6months| 6 to 12 months > 1year Total
:?::::;:’;:':nm"::” 235,233.11 . 23,0203 23,020.80 1,40,202.51 18624411
Interest payable 1,360.65 . 1,960,65 . - 196065
Lease Liability 23,469.34 20.368.77 £33 80 33993 1,526.84 23,463 34
‘Operational Buyers' Credit / Suppliers' Credit 91,046.22 91,046.22 - . 91,046.22
Trade and other payables 37,465.80 3745580 - - - 17,465.80

(iiij{a) The company's cucrent liabilities are currently in excess of the current assets and the mismatch in this respect is expected to be bridged with internal generations as well as funds from
external sources, The company has financial assets which will be realised in the ordinary coursa of business. Further, there are unused fine of credit of 3s.8,645.00 lakhs sanctioned from the
banks as well as loan of Rs, 25,000.00 lakhs in the process of being sanctioned as an this date. The Operational Suyers'/ Suppiiers' Credit and Term Loan from banks are backed by Carparate
Guarantees issued by the holding company and also as approved by the Board of the said company additonal fund from them or with their support to the tune of Rs. 1,25,000.00 lakhs is

expected ‘or providing required financial suppart to the company, These alongwith the expected generation of fund fram normal operations will be sufficient to cater the financial liability
becoming due or payable in the forthcoming vear .

{iv] CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company's capital managemert Is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value, The
Company’s abjective when managing canitl 5 to safeguard their abiity to continue as 3 going concern so that they cen continue 1o provide returns for sharehalders and benefits far other

stake holders. The Company is focused on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial Rexibility for patential future barrowings, if required
without impacting the risk profife of the Company

The gearing rat o as at March 31, 2023 and March 31 2022 are as fallows:

<urrent loans and borrawings

Von-current loans and barrowings

iTotal loans and barrowings

-ess: Cash and Cash Equivalents

iNet Oebt

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders =f tna Company
{Capital and Debt

[Fatal capital {loans and borrowings and equity)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARACH 31, 2023

a7

(Rs. in lakhs)
RATIOS
mnﬂaaﬁutm ratie: for the year ended March 31 2023 and March 13, 2022
| As at [ For the As at [ For the
|Particulars Numerator Denominator year ended year ended R rh
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Due te optimum
- utilisation of
Current Ratio Curreat dssets Current Labilities 066 1.00 -34.35% ;
Woiking capitail
{limits
. Short Term Barrowings+ Long Term o . Repayment of
Total 047 051 -1 1A%
Peal-Eoult ratio Borrwings+ Lease Liabllitles R b borrowings
. Earning before interest, Depreclation Interast Expense+Principal = %
bt sBrvice @ 3 89 3B.03% R t I
PEBEIRYie SR AT I R and Tax+ Exceptional itams Repayment of Long Term Debt o & ’ hrl!\ﬂl'rcﬂ o
bor awiigs
Due to increase in
Feturn on Equity Ratio Profit atter Tax+ Exceptianal items Tetal Equity -10.02% 0.59% ‘1600.38% price of principa!
inouts
Inventory turnover ratio | Revenue from aperations less EBITDA Averags Inventorny 333 6.41 AL
Trade Receivable increase i
" i Revenue frum Operation Average Trade Reccivables a8.47 noal s [0 oD
ratio Trade r bl
inel
Trade payables turnover Average Tﬂde Pavau::: g
sl Total Purchases Operational Buyers' Credit / 128 492 -33 34% Bue 10 umely
Supeliers’ Credit release of payments
o f
Net capital tunover ratio Revenue from operations Warking Cagital (6.64) 34284785| -toopow |07 Acount o
Working capital
Due 1o increase in|
Net profit ratio Profit after Tax+ Exceptional items Revenue fram Operation -6.95% £0.55% 1177.23% price of princ/pal
Inputs
Average Capital Employes [Capital Due to :
: Earning sefore Intarest and Tax- e o increase in
Return on capital emploved Evcaiitianal et Employed= Total Assets- Current -1.20% 1.52% -125.33% grice of principall
Liabilities) inputs
Due to rate
Return on Investments Income generated from investmants | Time weighted average ir 1457% 3.35% 311.03% fluctuation of
Mutual Funds
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L
it 1]

thy

led

(d)

(&)

(Res. in kakhs)
INCOME TAX
Iicomme Tax nas besn proviaed cans desirg the prov sians of nzome Tax Azl 3nd basen on the legal opimian 4nd 30v Ces e ived 1 TESpeCT
In assessing the ceiability of defesad fia assets (DTA), the Zonpawy corsiders the exiers 1o aiCn, i i probable that the Saterced tac 3sset will b realized. The ul:mate realicatian af

teferrad tan J55ets 15 depardent upon the 2eneraton ol turure taxasle profizs ganst wnich those teniporary differencas snd tav loss carny-lorwards become
conaiier s the oxpereed reversal of dafar<ad =av fiz2ilites snd srojected future tasab'a incame o making tvis assasiment.

deauiible The Company

M ent of Deferred Tax from begi g to tho end of the financial year is as follows:

: Asat Charge/ | Charge/ [Credit) to Asat
Particulars March 31,2021 | (Credit) to Other March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax Liability

3} Related to “roperty, Plant and Equipmen® and 49,286.24 3,532.36 52,818.80 |
Intangihi= Assars

b) =air Valuation of Mutual Funds 23,10 (18.29)

cl Laans carriec at Amortised Cast 714,44 (184.73)

2) Forward Cont-act receivable - 1934.09

Total Deferred Tax Liability _52&(_ 63

Deferred Tax Assets f

3} Accumulated Unabsosbed depresiation 2,43,314.01 (12.473.60)

b) Accurnulated Unabsarbed busiress loss 67,753.42 3,067,562

2] Provision fer doubtful debts, advances, ard 13,697.80 11.645.50
ather provisions

) amaunt deductible on paymant basis 209.06 (166,30} {108.17)

&) Others 278.26 278.36

Total Deferred Tax Assets 32525255 | 835138
Deferred Tax Liability/{Assets) (Nat) (275228751 1187951

The rationala for recognition of Deferr=d Tax Assets nas been reviewed considering the lass ‘n zurrent year and expected sustainability of profit and growth in volume of business in
o t deriod. Actordingly. Deferred Tax Assets of Re. B,713.34 lakhs on the expiry of the validity periad of unabsarbed carried forward business losses have seen reversed and such
assets to the extent of Rs, 27.503.33 lakhs pertaining to business losses as & matter of abundant caution has 26t been c-eated, leaving the balance amaunt of Rs. 2,54,892 24 (akhs {inciuding

5. 33,300.00 lakhs expected to be utilised in lorthcoming year) which based an management’s assumption for reasonakle certainty of utilisation thereof as required in terms of Ind A5 12
“income Taxes” has been carried forward a5 3t March 31, 2023

in view of the management, future taxabie income of the company tansidering the grojected volume of operations etz will be suffizient to absarb the deferrad tax asssts for ulilisation
tnereaf avera periad of time.

The Expiry date for accumulated business loss and unabsorbed depreciation are as follows:
Particulars

Year of Expiry Amount
Qusiness Loss 2027-1028 8842983
Unabserbed depreciation Na Expiry 75641418
The Expiry date for acc lated busi loss 1 ining gnised are as foll
Particulars Year of Expiry Amount
Jusiness Loss 2026-2227 2779381
Business Loss 2027-2228 23,080 15
Business Loss 2031-2032 13526.00

Recanaliation of Tax expense and the accounting arefit multiplied by domestiz tax sate for March 31, 2023
Particulars

Profit/ {Loss) before rax

Income Tax Charge/{Credit) therean based on tax rate @ 34.94%

adjustment for:

Diffarence (n amaunt of Unabseroed business loss cansidered for last year computation
Losses lapse during the year

Other Permanert difference

Closing unrecognised unused tax Iosses
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